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Our teams have opened doors towards several new prospects 
this year. From launching a skin care range designed for  
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FINANCIAL  
HIGHLIGHTS

Year Ended 31 March 2017 2016 Change %

Group Revenue Rs.‘000 43,404,452 37,976,564 14.3%

Rs.‘000 4,783,801 3,943,929 21.3%

Rs.‘000 5,086,894 4,074,369 24.9%

Rs.‘000 3,753,850 2,925,970 28.3%

Rs.‘000 3,491,478 2,653,208 31.6%

Gross Dividend Paid Rs.‘000 801,619 629,800 27.3%

Rs.‘000 3,005,374 4,250,945 -29.3%

Rs.‘000 4,696,703 3,943,929 19.1%

Rs.‘000 4,999,796 4,074,369 22.7%

Rs.‘000 3,666,752 2,925,970 25.3%

Rs.‘000 3,405,484 2,653,208 28.4%

Total Assets Rs.‘000 47,318,551 42,327,175 11.8%

Rs.‘000 24,911,251 21,991,693 13.3%

No. of Shares No.‘000 572,733 572,545 0.0%

Gearing % 16.0% 18.5% -13.5%

% 19.1% 22.8% -16.1%

Return on Equity % 14.9% 14.1% 5.6%

Earnings per Share Rs. 6.10 4.71 29.4%

Dividend per Share Rs. 1.40 1.10 27.3%

Dividend Payout % 23.0% 23.7% -3.3%

Net Assets per Share Rs. 43.50 38.41 13.2%

Rs.‘000 62,256,128 46,147,138 34.9%

Times 17.83 17.10 4.2%

Market Price as at 31st March Rs. 108.70 80.60 34.9%
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GROUP REVENUE

EARNINGS

EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST & TAX

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS
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CHAIRMAN’S 
REVIEW

Hemas Holdings has always been a place of empowerment.  
This quality has been vital as our businesses ventured into 

your company.  

Our teams have opened doors towards several new prospects 
this year.  From launching a skin care range designed for 
Sri Lankan skin to venturing out into new geographies. By 

partnerships and venturing into the digital wellness space, we 

With consumers at heart and Sri Lanka’s unique and valuable 

and reviving commodity prices could strengthen advanced 

South Asia appears to be growing at a steadier pace. In 
India, there have been solid moves towards reform with last 

and growing private investments.  

country has not materialised in this past year.  

in May 2016, only to be subsequently withdrawn and imposed 

on life-saving services are regressive and impede consumer 

202%

the personal care industry. A sensible regulatory regime will 
provide much needed quality assurances to consumers, and 

of its long term sourcing strategy. This has helped the industry 
to raise the bar on quality, acquire the latest know-how and 
invest in capacity enhancement to expand the supply of 

as well as export markets.   

On the trade front, several new bilateral agreements are being 

needs to liberalize, we encourage the government to work with 
the private sector to form a focused strategy through which 
Sri Lankan industries can penetrate overseas markets. Beyond 

deeper understanding where capacity enhancement, technical 

this endeavor. 
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CHAIRMAN’S 
REVIEW

that your company delivered a solid performance for the year 
under review. Group revenues grew by 14.3% to reach  

company’s share price appreciated 34.9% to close at  

of our teams and there have been several milestones this year 

to deliver great value to the Sri Lankan consumer and gain 

new product development, most notably the launch of new 
Velvet skincare and Kumarika hair care ranges.  In Bangladesh, 
Kumarika is now the leading value added hair oil, thus providing 

has commenced work on a new state-of-the-art plant with 

markets.

were brought under a single cluster to provide focus, build 

Anantara Peace Haven impacted sector results, but, we are 

forward in view of outstanding customer reviews and industry 
accolades.  
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This year was a noteworthy one on the people front as we 

doing business in the wellness space, we believe our 

which we support by providing knowledge and resources on 

Abhimana, a programme launched in 
2014 to make sustainability a way of life at Hemas champions 
mindfulness of the impact we have on the broader community 
across our businesses. This year, we also sought to bring 

the lives of those around us.  

a dynamic business environment. Our approach is shaped 

are saddened this year to have lost a member of the Board, Mr 
Pradipta Mohapatra. Over the years, Mr Mohapatra provided 

unparalleled experience, and we will miss him immensely.  

pace of growth, your company is fortunate to have a CEO 
and Management Team who are experienced, energized and 
competent as they have amply demonstrated over the past 
year. My sincere thanks go out also to each and every member 

We are fortunate to have an engaged and experienced Board, 
and I sincerely thank my colleagues for their guidance and 
willingness to contribute.  Finally, I also thank our treasured 
customers, our numerous partners and our shareholders for 

ahead. 

Chairman, Hemas Holdings PLC

16 May 2017
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STEVEN ENDERBY
GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S STATEMENT

I would like to start my review by thanking all those who have 
contributed to making 2016/17 another successful year for 
Hemas Holdings. We value the role played by our many trade 
partners, suppliers and principals, Government, shareholders 
and most importantly our customers across the length and 
breadth of Sri Lanka and increasingly in Bangladesh. 

to pursue strong growth in our core sectors. 

The ongoing growth of our Consumer business in Sri Lanka 
has seen us not only increase market share in key categories 
but also enter new categories including the new Velvet 

of our Bangladesh business with Kumarika achieving market 
leadership in the value added hair oil category.

hospitals, the team have worked hard to deliver improved 

hospital services in November 2016. At J. L. Morison's we 

for the future as we plan our new manufacturing facility 

and great opportunity have encouraged us to enter into a 

warehousing facility and container yard, which we aim to have 

growth sector of the economy.

been busy driving performance at our new property while 
developing our strategy for future growth in this rapidly 
developing industry. We have also re-organised ourselves. We 
have brought these businesses together under  
Mr Malinga Arsakularatne’s leadership and restructured the 
group ownership of key Leisure and Travel assets.

As illustrated by these highlights, 2016/17 has been a year 
of solid progress for us. At the heart of this has been great 
performance by our engaged and empowered teams. The 

challenges of today and being fully equipped for leading 

that the only long-term sustainable advantage for Hemas lies 
in our people, having great teams grown within and performing 

of Management Bangalore in June 2016. 29 of our team 

their leadership competencies and to prepare them for future 

improve our health indicators across the Group. We have some 
distance to go but there are already some very encouraging 

our professional and personal lives. 

We have also been working hard in sharpening our employee 

employees we can be an employer who recognises and 
encourages the unique skills each of us bring not only to the 
workplace but also at home and in society more broadly. 

go further on this path and make Hemas a great workplace for 
women, we have launched our women’s network. 

Sustainability remains a key focus area as we assess our impact 

'Enriching Lives' plan in 2016/17 we measure and evaluate our 
sustainability goals against social, environmental and economic 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S STATEMENT

Piyawara" pre school 

in the coming year. We have also further developed our 

stone laying for ‘AYATI - a Centre of Excellence for Children 

Business Performance 
The Group achieved a consolidated revenue of Rs. 43.4Bn, 

than expected economic growth at 4.4%, unfavorable weather 

Hemas Consumer delivered another strong year with a topline 

whilst earnings grew at 15.7% to stand at Rs. 1.7Bn. Our 

high growth personal care categories. We launched a series 
of new products, including the Velvet bath and body range to 

new Kumarika

new soap plant at our Sri Lankan manufacturing facility. Our 
local consumer sector growth is primarily driven by market 

improvement of the sector.

We have taken a number of important steps in the 
development of our personal care business beyond the shores 
of Sri Lanka. During the year under review, our Bangladesh 
consumer business has maintained its high revenue growth. 
Our Bangladesh business now accounts for 15.2% of our 
overall Consumer sector sales and Kumarika achieved market 
leadership in the value added hair oil category in Bangladesh. 
We recently launched Kumarika facewash and shampoo and 
entered the feminine hygiene category. 
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Consolidated healthcare sector revenue stood at Rs.18.8Bn, a 

During 2016/17 healthcare sector experienced challenges 

challenges that this challenging announcement presented and 

search for areas of performance improvement as we look to 
restore margins in 2017/18.

Our hospitals delivered good growth over last year with 
its latest investments in bed expansion in Hemas Hospital 

EBITDA margins improving to 15.0% from 13.0%. This remains 

been part of J. L. Morison’s for many years. This enables the 
business to focus on excellence in Rx and OTC manufacturing. 

traveler as part of their strategy. During the year under review, 

sector performance was stagnated with a topline of Rs.1.8Bn 
during the year 2016/17. LTA experienced a decline in 

Performance at Anantara Peace Haven Tangalle Resort is 

environments. Air cargo handling experienced a stronger 
growth compared to passenger growth over the last quarter 
and as a result, this segment recorded a growth in revenues 

of 103.4% over last year registering a topline of Rs.1.9Bn. 

consolidate warehousing, improve capacity and provide a range 
of new services to clients. This new investment is through a 

performed well to achieve a revenue growth of 9.7% and PAT 
growth of 9.0%.

Way forward

park, we will also be entering new consumer categories in 

technologies all aimed at providing us with growth for the 
future.

The achievements of 2016/17 were made possible by the 
hard work and clear thinking of our team across the Group and 
the wise counsel of our Boards of Directors, both at Hemas 
Holdings PLC and in our subsidiaries. Let’s see what we can 
deliver in 2017/18.

16 May 2017
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FINANCIAL  
REVIEW

for the FY 2016/17, to reach Rs. 43.4Bn. During this year, 

Earnings grew by 31.6% YoY to reach Rs. 3.5Bn and internal 

has performed well to grow strongly during the year despite 
economic growth being lower than expected. 

Group revenue experienced a robust growth, despite sluggish 

income of about 30% of the agriculture-based households 

Consolidated Group revenue grew at 14.3% YoY to reach Rs. 
43.4Bn compared to Rs. 38.0Bn last year. Table 1 highlights 

growth. 

posted strong growth rates of 103.4%, 16.7% and 12.0% 

previous year, YoY revenue growth of the Consumer sector and 

Group revenue growth of 14.3%.

Group Revenue
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Leisure, Travel & Avia�on Logis�c & Mari�me
Other Group Revenue Growth Rate

 Table – 1 Revenue Analysis

 

 16/17 16/17 16/17 16/17

Consumer 37.7% 12.0% 4.5% 31.6% 36.9%

Healthcare 42.5% 16.7% 7.1% 49.7% 43.4%

11.2% 1.3% 0.1% 1.0% 9.9%

2.5% 103.4% 2.6% 18.1% 4.4%

Other 6.2% -1.0% -0.1% -0.4% 5.3%

Group 100.0% 14.3% 14.3% 100.0% 100.0%

powder, Baby Cheramy diapers, Clogard toothpaste and Fems 

sanitary napkins contributed towards growth in sales of the 

further backed by improved performance of J. L. Morison Son 

Healthcare, being the largest sector of the Group, recorded 
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the Government for over 48 molecules. Hospitals recorded 
an overall revenue growth of 16.4%, led by the growth of 

VAT but was compensated by the increase in capacity of the 

Morison's further boosted the sector revenue by improving the 

Buy-back supplies business, although it exited from its Agro 
business during this year.

performed well during this period despite the runway closure 

the leisure sector did not see an increase in revenue despite 
the increase in room rates due to lower occupancy rates.

growth of 103.4% YoY, recording a topline of Rs. 1.9Bn 

handling income due to volume growth and increased revenue 

in Sri Lanka

Margins have improved due to low raw material prices, price 
increases in some categories of the Consumer sector, change 

Opera�ng Profit
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Opera�ng Profit Opera�ng Profit Growth

Opera�ng Profit Margin

 

 16/17 16/17 16/17 16/17 16/17

 % % %

Consumer         1,768 2,074 17.3% 306 7.8% 12.4% 13.0%

Healthcare 1,780 2,065 16.0% 285 7.2% 11.0% 11.0%

515 356 -30.9% -4.0% 12.1% 8.3%

194 496 155.7% 302 7.7% 20.4% 25.7%

Other 33.9% 106 2.7% -13.4% -8.9%

Group 3,944 4,784 21.3% 840 21.3% 10.4% 11.0%

analysis for the year under review. The Group recorded an 

growth of the sector recording 19.2% growth YoY. The 
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the period under review. The Hospital business experienced 

many hospital services. J.L. Morison's reported a YoY growth 

land in Moratuwa which was recorded as an investment 
property owned by Hemas Holdings PLC.

Group Earnings

Earnings
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Earnings Earnings Growth

the Group represents the interest income, which recorded 
a growth of 28.0% over last year. Further, Earnings growth 
improved due to Tax expenses growing at a lesser rate of 

24.9%.

income of Rs. 303Mn which is an increase of Rs. 173Mn over 

by the proceeds generated through the Rights Issue and the 

review. Even though the income tax charge has increased by 

decreased from 28.2% to 26.2% due to the increase in tax free 
interest income. However, the posted increase in tax expense 

tax expense of Rs. 107Mn. The lower performance of Serendib 

expenses by Rs. 16Mn.

FINANCIAL  
REVIEW
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 16/17 16/17 16/17 16/17

 % %

                3,944       4,784 21.3%                   840 31.7%

Net Finance Income                      130 303 133.1%                   173 6.5%

                4,074       5,087 24.9%               1,013 38.2%

Income Tax Expense 16.1% -7.0%

2,926 3,754 28.3%                   828 31.2%

Non-Controlling Interest 273 262 -4.0% -0.4%

Group Earnings               2,653     3,491 31.6%                   838 31.6%

Net Interest Cover    

28.2% 26.2%    

decreased marginally due to the net impact of increases from 
new ventures and the changes in holding percentage of certain 

Sector and J.L. Morison's posted an increase of NCI of Rs. 

76.1Mn as a result of stagnated performance. 

Cash Flow 

YoY decrease of 29.3% to Rs. 3Bn due to changes in 
working capital. Trade and Other Receivables movement 

other receivables have increased mainly due to the delay in 

Opera�ng Cash Flow
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Opera�ng Cash Flow OCF Growth

with a growth of 132%, recording a value of Rs. 2.2Bn. The 

result of disposal of property plant and equipment, and mainly 
from the disposal of investment property. 

the proceeds received from the Rights Issue. Disposal of 50% 

Liquidity and Solvency 

in Net Current Assets as shown in Table 4. The increase in 
Current Assets is mainly due to the increase in inventory levels 

N-able, the IT services business. The overall increase in 
Group Trade and Other Receivables and Inventory has been 
partly covered by the increase in Trade Payable from Hemas 

constant at Rs. 10.6Bn compared to last year. The Working 
Capital Cycle has increased by 6 days as a result of increase 

increase in Creditor Days.
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Table – 4 Group Liquidity

 16/17

Current Assets 24,708        28,469 15.2%

13,437        15,994 19.0%

Net Current Assets 11,271        12,475 10.7%

1.84             1.78  

1.45             1.39  

Debtor Days 53                 62  

Inventory Days 80                 86  

Creditor Days 103              112  

Working Capital Cycle 30                 36  

The overall capital structure of the Group remains persistent 
as shown in Table 5. The overall Net Debt status has 
increased marginally due to the increase in surplus cash and dividends. The strong and healthy capital structure with low 

gearing improves the capacity to borrow for future strategic 
investments.

Table – 5 Group Capital Structure and Solvency

 16/17

 

Long-term Debt              3,242           2,045

Short-term Debt               2,372           3,328

Total Debt      5,614       5,373 

Surplus Cash            10,887          10,619 

Non-controlling Interest               2,662 3,218 

Parent’s Equity      21,992          24,911 

Total Equity 24,653          28,129 

Total Assets 42,327 47,319 

30,267 33,502 

Capital Employed less Surplus Cash 19,380 22,883 

-27.2% -22.9%

18.5% 16.0%

10.7% 6.1%

FINANCIAL  
REVIEW
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The Group’s surplus cash includes the cash generated from 
the Rights Issue which is invested in tax free money market 

same for intended strategic investments in Consumer and 
Healthcare sectors.

in Table 6. Accordingly, Group reported a healthy ROE of 
14.9% compared to last year’s 14.1% while ROCE reported a 
growth from last year’s 16.8% to 17.6% as a result of improved 
performance of the Group. 

Due to lower gearing there is minimal change in the capital 

Table – 6 Return on Capital 
 11/12 12/13 13/14 16/17

9.8% 10.7% 8.8% 10.4% 10.4% 11.0%

Asset Turnover 1.03 1.07 0.98 1.03 0.99 0.97 

Asset/Capital Employed 1.33 1.34 1.38 1.30 1.40 1.41 

ROCE 13.4% 15.4% 11.8% 14.7% 16.8% 17.6%

Interest Cover 4.3 7.5 7.2 7.3 7.7 9.21 

17.1% 19.7% 22.4% 22.7% 28.2% 26.2%

Gearing 25.0% 25.5% 25.9% 26.9% 18.5% 16.0%

ROE 12.0% 14.5% 18.2% 12.9% 14.1% 14.9%
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CONSUMER SECTOR

Consumer Others Consumer Others

Healthcare

Sector vs Group Revenue Sector vs Group Profit

37%
Consumer Consumer

45 %
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Hemas Consumer is a leading player in Sri Lanka’s Home and 

We take pride in using local insights to innovate and develop 

The year under review was a very challenging one in which 

economic environment. In order to sustain our growth 

in its core categories and reinforced its presence in the high 
growth categories of Skin, Hair and Baby. The sector recorded 
an outstanding revenue growth of 12.0% and Earnings growth 
of 15.7%. 

deep understanding of the Sri Lankan consumer coupled with 

consumers.

Baby Cheramy, the No. 1 baby care brand in Sri Lanka has 

the lives of 50,000 mothers in a single year. This has helped 
deliver strong growth for the brand in equity, revenue and 
markat share.

Infused with the goodness of nature and science, Clogard Gel 
Toothpaste and Mouthwash have been well accepted by the 
Sri Lankan consumer and found a good connect with a new 
base of youthful, digital consumers. This has helped the brand 
strengthen its overall appeal and achieve very strong double 
digit growth.

Velvet
Sri Lankan beauty soap market. The brand has succeeded 

introducing new variants for the discerning Sri Lankan 
consumer. 

Kumarika, which is formulated 
with the goodness of natural ingredients, has been trusted 

to every need of the modern woman, leaving her hair looking 

Fems

topline growth for the third successive year.

Home care brand Diva
and ended the year with high double digit growth and stronger 

instrumental in achieving the brand’s tremendous success.

increase coverage and frequency, strengthening of trade 

develop key channels have played a vital role in strengthening 

Kumarika hair oil has emerged as the leader of the value added 

been supported by expanding direct coverage to more than 

of two new variants of face wash. Customers’ willingness 

Rs. Bn Rs. Bn Rs. Bn
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products that deliver great value has always guided Hemas 
Consumer sector. 

The business of Hemas Consumer in Bangladesh saw some 

of the sector achieved a growth of 32.1%. The main brand 

value-added segment. 

health and safety and employee well-being has led to greater 
employee engagement.

successful without the correct support of suppliers. Regular 

approach to procurement have enabled our suppliers to 

product development and manufacturing that have resulted in 

Hemas Consumer is further boosted with the well-respected 

consumer category which includes well-known brands such 
as Morison’s Lacto Calamine, Morison’s Gripe Mixture and 
Valmelix Cough Syrup. These brands have been trusted by Sri 
Lankan consumers for over six decades and have penetrated 
virtually every household in the country. All three brands saw 

segment.

CONSUMER SECTOR

growing categories and expanding our footprint in regional 
geographies will be key to sustaining our growth momentum. 
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HEALTH CARE

Healthcare Others Healthcare Others

Healthcare

Sector vs Group Revenue Sector vs Group Profit

43%
Healthcare Healthcare

38%
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Hemas is the largest private sector healthcare player, with a 

and owns and manages three modern fully equipped Hospitals 

leading healthcare provider, Hemas strives to excel in quality, 

enriching the lives of the community we aim to serve. During 
the second half of 2016/17, our healthcare sector witnessed 

Our consolidated healthcare sector revenues stood at  

grew by 15.9% and 16.6%, to achieve Rs. 2.1Bn and Rs. 1.4Bn 

its promise of delivering the state-of-the-art services with the 

delivering superior healthcare to enrich lives. 

 

range of imported products. The company’s range of trusted 

entails a unique blend of globally reputed brands across 

The past year proved to be a challenging year for the company 

company’s topline growth for the year. The repercussions 
of the price control was felt by all the stakeholders across 

pressure on company margins, especially in an environment 
of controlled pricing. Over the year, the company successfully 
faced these challenges to close the year on a strong note and 

has focused on driving growth through investments in 

market.

agencies that share and follow our values. These elements 
all come together in a business approach that allows us to 

reaching new milestones every year.

Rs. Bn Rs. Bn Rs. Bn
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As a leading player in the Healthcare industry, J. L. Morison, 
which was acquired by Hemas in 2013, is vested with the 

partners and society as we aspire to be a trusted leader in the 

2016/17, supported by the growth of our core segments, 

slowdown. J.L. Morison's revenue grew by 6.7% in 2016/17 in 
comparison to the same period last year, while earnings grew 
by 50.1%. 

towards high growth in the private sector and J.L. Morison's is 

We focus our investment on areas where we believe there are 

concentrate on mechanisms that might slow down or reverse 

remission. 

The factories of J.L. Morison's adhere to Good Manufacturing 

quality are in place with the help of our external consultants 
and internal GMP team. GMP ensures that products are 
consistently produced and controlled according to quality 
standards and is designed to minimize the risks involved in 

quality, we hope to reinforce the trust that our customers and 
society have placed in us.

In 2017/18 J. L. Morison’s plan is to take further steps to 

tablets. Whilst Sri Lanka will no doubt face her own share of 

in a high growth industry, and our task is to focus on building 

changing environment.

Hemas Hospitals
Hemas Hospitals is the fastest growing hospital chain in  

hospital chain to be accredited by the Australian Council for 

HEALTH CARE
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We take pride in our commitment to ensure that every 
visitor is provided with the highest standards in healthcare 

focusing on a range of services. We promise you the very 

the pioneering step of taking quality healthcare closer to the 

of Sri Lanka.

year that achieved many milestones aligned to the long-term 
vision of the hospitals group. All three hospitals increased 

center of excellence in GE, Orthopedics, new clinics, and 
expanded capacity in dialysis, high dependency units, whilst 

During the year, the hospitals group revenue grew by 16%, 
EBITDA by 39% and its EBITDA Margin by 19%. Recording a 
noteworthy performance in a tough environment that included 

Bariatric Surgery program, Neuro Surgical, ENT and building 
surgical capability and signed retainer agreements with full 

programme. Hemas Southern made strong improvements to 

Amidst these challenges, Hemas hospitals group was 

quality standards. During the year, Hemas won the Excellence 

in Hospital Management and Governance and the South 

development that will hold us in good stead for the future.
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LEISURE, TRAVEL AND AVIATION

LTA Others LTA Others

Sector vs Group Revenue Sector vs Group Profit

10%
LTA LTA

8%
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and outbound travel management services and airline 

The year in review was a challenging period for the industry. 

experiences for guests, the sector was able to maintain its 
brand promise throughout the year. 

1.3% YoY growth for the twelve months ended 31 March 
2017. The Hotels sector performance stagnated with a 
topline of Rs.1.8Bn during the year 2016/17. Fall in segmental 

Investments, 100% owned by HHL.

Hotels
From the golden sands of Bentota to the truly cultural 

captures the true essence of Sri Lankan hospitality. 

however much development work needs to happen to catch 
up with emerging and popular Asian tourism hubs. The impact 
of Western and Middle Eastern security concerns slowed 
down global tourism overall, however, Sri Lanka stands to gain 

This year, our key focus in hotels has been to consolidate 

more closely with rapidly growing traveller segments and 

to extend our services, and reach into new travel segments.

Avani Bentota experienced a drop in occupancy from 74% 

grow revenue as a result, of higher room rates, despite the 
unfavorable exchange rate movements. 

Club Hotel Dolphin, a favourite among Western European 
guests achieved an average occupancy of 79% during the 
year and the hotel’s yield was impacted by the fall in value of 
the Euro and Sterling globally. Occupancy was impacted by a 

class operators along the Negombo coast have been under 

industry accolades.

and service levels in order to grow market share in an 

for travellers with a rapid expansion of new inventory over the 

Rs. Bn Rs. Mn Rs. Mn
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alongside with cultural experiences and caters to the strong 
demand from our emerging markets.

won accolades from numerous travel and leisure magazines 
including Condé Nast Traveller. Stretched across Sri Lanka’s 

Anantara has set the benchmark in Sri Lanka for luxury 

peace and tranquility for a discerning traveller amidst lush 
foliage, crystal blue waters and stretches of white sandy beach. 

upscale travellers. 

Travels

advantage. DTSL, our inbound travel arm recorded marginal 
growth in revenue. Online travel and good growth in emerging 

a large intermediary account. Revenue growth was helped by a 

a 145% growth during 2016/17. 

During the year, DTSL established new partnerships with tour 
operators and agents from both European and Asian markets 
which we hope will drive future growth. 

As Sri Lanka becomes home to global hotel chains such as 

from the luxury traveller. Diethelm Travels has pursued upscale 

advantage from the Middle East, Eastern Europe, Far East and 

from its proximity to India, and its strong links with China 
where the growing urban middle class is set to generate more 

On the digital and technology front, the company established 
extensive links with online operators and went live with a new 
ERP system to improve . 

Our outbound travel arm Hemas Travels grew in line with 

Travels. The emergence of online players with aggressive 

LEISURE, TRAVEL 
AND AVIATION
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Sri Lanka’s airline travel industry grew at 12% over the past 

the year under review to broaden our geographic reach and 

and the Maldives. 

The General Sales Agency for Emirates, Malaysian Airlines and 

with passenger and cargo volumes recording double-digit 

key contributor to overall revenue followed by New Zealand, 

in November 2016 together with the presence of China 
Southern Airlines, Alitalia, EVA Airways, Maldivian, Druk Air 

of Ground Supervision services also helped to further enhance 

giving the sector a global reach.

The strategic focus for 2017/2018 will be to improve overall 

sales.
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MOBILITY 

Mobility Others Mobility Others

Sector vs Group Revenue Sector vs Group Profit

4%
Moblity Moblity

11%
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Enabling Hemas to leverage on Sri Lanka’s growth momentum 
as one of South Asia’s key markets and to grow in line with 
the pace of development that’s driving the Asian region, the 

Outgrowing its past records, the Mobility sector has 
successfully gained momentum to take the sector to greater 

 

to the previous year. 

segment was the appointment of Hemas as the agent 

Line which is the 3rd largest carrier calling to the Port of 

growth of the segment. 

responding to the growth in volume within the region by 

India and the Bay of Bengal. The past year also witnessed the 
coming of age of HC Line, the feeder service which serves the 
Maldivian market.

in the South Asian region. With massive developments taking 
place in the country, especially with the advent of large scale 

The market too is changing, with new Asian powers racing 
to be in the forefront and bringing with it a new dimension 

shrinking of margins and the unexpected drop in automobile 

the year. 

Rs. Bn Rs. Mn Rs. Mn
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with McLarens Holdings, which represents globally acclaimed 

the Government’s plan to take Sri Lanka forward as a regional 
trading hub. When the island transforms into a hub, there 

goods for re-exports. By this partnership, we will be able to 

a 10 acre container yard and a state of the art warehouse 

delivering greater customer centricity.

emerging capital of the world, the Mobility sector is looking 
beyond the shores of Sri Lanka. Establishing regional container 

outlook for the sector. 

MOBILITY 
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BOARD OF  
DIRECTORS

Husein Esufally
Non-Executive Chairman Executive Director / CEO Non-Executive Director

Mr. Husein Esufally started his career with 

Company for a period of 19 years, during 
which, the business established a strong 

Hemas Holdings PLC, whilst also chairing 

manufacturing subsidiaries.

Mr. Esufally was appointed as the Non-

PLC on 22.07.2015. He also serves on 
the Boards of several other companies 

Mr. Esufally holds a Bachelor of Science 

Lavinia.

of Deputy CEO and Director of Hemas 
Holdings PLC in November 2013 and was 

of the Company on 01st April 2014. Mr. 
Enderby has had a successful track record 

He has led many of the most successful 

including South Asia Gateway Terminal, 

Technologies.  Mr.Enderby is also Non-

Partners Sri Lanka’s leading private equity 
fund. He has also served on the Boards 
of many leading companies in Sri Lanka 
and India. He is a Fellow of the Chartered 

Master’s Degree in Development Studies 

With over 35 years’ experience in the 
tourism industry, Mr. Abbas Esufally has 
played a pivotal role in expanding the 
Group’s Leisure interest. He serves as a 
Group Director of Hemas Holdings PLC, 
Chairman of Serendib Hotels PLC, Dolphin 
Hotels PLC, Hotel Sigiriya PLC as well as 

Company. He also serves on several other 
listed and unlisted company boards. 

and development of the country’s tourism 
industry. Mr. Esufally serves as the Chairman 

of the Ceylon Chamber of Commerce and is 

Member of the Advisory Council appointed 
by the Hon. Minister of Tourism.

Mr. Esufally is a Fellow Member of both 

Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. He is an 

Honorary Consul of Bhutan in Sri Lanka.
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Murtaza Esufally 
Executive Director Non-Executive Director

Mr. Murtaza Esufally counts more than 26 
years of experience in senior management 
levels and has been assigned with a new 
role of Group Director Human Performance 
and Leadership. He is the Chairman of 

for Poverty Analysis. He holds a Master’s 

the Melbourne Business School of the 

of the Lincoln’s Inn and holds a Bachelor of 

Supreme Court of Sri Lanka.

Director of Hemas Holdings PLC .He is 

Hotels PLC. He further serves as a Member 

Mr. Esufally holds a Bachelor of Arts 

He counts over 30 years of management 
experience and has been in the forefront of 
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Independent Director
Dr. Anura Ekanayake
Independent Director

Mr. Ramabadran Gopalakrishnan has over 
50 years of experience in professional 

and 17 years in TATA. He has served as 

Director of Brooke Bond Lipton India, and 

TATA in December 2015 and currently 
serves as an Independent Director on the 
boards of the Indian subsidiaries of Akzo 
Nobel and Castrol India. Mr. Gopalakrishnan 

an Advanced Management Program at 
the Harvard Business School. He is a Past 
President of the All India Management 

Dr. Anura Ekanayake is a former Chairman 
of the Ceylon Chamber of Commerce, 

He has had an illustrious career in public 
service serving as a Senior Economist of the 
Mahaweli Authority, Director on the Boards 

JEDB, Director of Planning to the Ministry 

Dr. Ekanayake held directorships in all 

also served on the Tea Research Board, 

Development Trust.

Director – Human Resources and Corporate 

on a number of boards of listed companies 
and non-listed companies.

Peradeniya and a Ph.D in Economics from 

Professional Managers. Dr. Ekanayake is a 

BOARD OF  
DIRECTORS

Malinga Arsakularatne
Executive Director 

Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne was appointed 
as the Managing Director of Hemas’ newly 

in April 2016. Prior to this appointment Mr. 
Arsakularatne served as the Chief Financial 

Arsakularatne has 18 years of experience in 

and business strategy.

He also serves on the Boards of Serendib 
Hotels PLC, Dolphin Hotels PLC and Hotel 
Sigiriya PLC. Mr. Arsakularatne also holds 
directorships in some of the other unlisted 
subsidiary companies within the Hemas 

Director of SLIIT. Mr. Arsakularatne is a 
CFA Charter Holder and a Past President of 
CFA Sri Lanka. He is also a Fellow Member 

Member of the CIMA Sri Lanka Division. 
He holds a BSc in Computer Science 

Moratuwa, MSc in Investment Management 

MBA from INSEAD. 
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Shaktha Amaratunga 
Independent Director

Dinesh Weerakkody
Independent Director

January 2016. Mr. Amaratunga is currently a 
Commissioner of PT Agro Indomas Indonesia 

Goodhope Asia Holdings Limited a subsidiary 
of the Carson Cumberbatch Group. He was 

American Tobacco, having performed senior 

Sri Lanka, Switzerland, Japan and Malaysia 

has many years of experience in Strategy 
Development, Business Restructuring, Risk 

People Development. He is a Fellow Member 
of the Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, 

Member of CPA Australia.

Mr. Dinesh Weerakkody is the Chairman of 

Council of Sri Lanka and Cornucopia Sri 
Lanka. He is an Advisor to the Ministry of 

was also the Chairman of the Government 

He is a former Chairman of Commercial 
Bank Ceylon PLC and the Employees’ Trust 
Fund Board of Sri Lanka. He serves in a 
number of private sector Boards including 

and Ceylon Tobacco PLC. Mr. Weerakkody 

Personnel Management of Sri Lanka. Mr. 
Weerakkody is a Council Member of the 

of the CIMA Asia Pac Advisory Board.
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Mr. Harith Perera
Managing Director of Diethelm Travel

 Harith is the Managing Director of Diethelm Travel Sri Lanka 

in 2006 and subsequently was part of the team launching 
Diethelm Travel in Sri Lanka and Maldives. 

of PATA, Sri Lankan Chapter. He is a Member of the Chartered 

Legal Consultant

Riad is the Legal Consultant to Hemas Holdings PLC. He 

Hemas Group for the past 10 years. Riad has been a civil law 

Mr. Sanjeewa Samaranayake

and counts over 20 years of management experience, holding 

in Sri Lanka. He has a Bachelor of Commerce Degree from 

- Finance and Supply Chain in 2003 and was appointed as 

for Most Outstanding Business Leader of the Year by the 

events.

Ms. Kasturi Chellaraja Wilson

and has served as Board Member of CIMA, Sri Lanka. She 

Head of Shared Services for the Group and subsequently as 

the Ceylon Chamber of Commerce 

Managing Director of Hemas Manufacturing (Pvt) Limited

Roy is the Managing Director of Hemas Manufacturing 

Supply Chain, Channels/Customer Development and General 

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Trihan Perera
Managing Director of J L Morison Son & Jones (Ceylon) PLC

Trihan is the Managing Director of J L Morison Son & Jones 

since 2010. He began his career at NDB and moved to 

a wide range of industries including banking, shipping and 

overseas.

Mr. Chandima Cooray

and growth oriented business models and to deliver a great 
customer experience across all products/service touch points. 
Chandima has accumulated over 20 years of experience in 

Chandima was with MAS Holdings, Sri Lanka for Fourteen 
years, lastly as the CEO for Sabre Technologies a fully owned 

followed strategic management courses from renowned 

Mr. Dimuth De Alwis
Group Human Resource Director

Hospitals as the Head of Human Resources in 2008 and 
was subsequently promoted to the Head of Group Human 
Resources in 2010 and in 2011 to the role of Director. Dimuth 

Sri Lanka.

Dr. Himesh Fernando

of Colombo in Molecular Biology and Biochemistry. He holds 

Dr. Lakith Peiris
Managing Director, Hemas Hospitals

Lakith Joined Hemas on 01st April 2015. He is a well-known 
leader in the healthcare industry and a hospital administrator 
of repute. He has over 20 years’ experience as the head of the 

holds a Doctorate in Business & Management, an MBA from 

Services Regulatory Council of the Ministry of Health and also 

Director Strategy, Hemas Holdings PLC

Prior to her role in Hemas, Ruwani was engaged with Vox & 

and helping clients navigate Sri Lankan markets. Before that, 

Colombo Academy of Hospitality Management at SLIIT. Ruwani 

The Board of Management also includes Messer’s Steven 
Enderby, Malinga Arsakularatne and Murtaza Esufally, whose 
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CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

Our Governance Framework

 

Companies Act 7 of 2007

Colombo Stock Exchange

Corporate Governance 

ICASL

Code of Ethics

Standard/SLFRS

Shareholders External Auditors

Human Resources and 

Internal Audit Division

Board of  
Directors

Elects Engages

As
su

ra
nc

e

 th
ro

ug
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managed. The above CG framework provides an overview of 
the corporate governance structures, principles, policies and 

improvement, oversight of strategy and risk. The fundamental 

and other Stakeholders is established by our governance 
structure, through which the ethical values and corporate 

monitoring performance are determined.

To serve the interests of shareholders and other stakeholders, 

review, assessment and improvement. The Board of Directors 

designed to align the interests of the Board and Management 
with those of shareholders and other stakeholders and to 
promote the highest standards of ethical behaviour and risk 

and endeavor to go beyond the legal requirement by 

engagement, ensuring high standards of professionalism and 
ethics.
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The Board provides strategic leadership and guidance and sets the tone to ensure that the development of the Company is based 
on values. 

We believe that our values are the driving force across the Group and is our guiding force for Good Governance. 

Board Leadership

Mr. H. N. Esufally Mr. R. Gopalakrishnan Mr. M. A. H. Esufally

Mr. I. A. H. Esufally Mr. D. S. Weerakkody Mr. S. M. Enderby

Mr. A. N. Esufally Dr. S. A. B. Ekanayake Mr. W. M. De F. Arsakularatne

Mr. A. S. Amaratunga

 

7 4 6 3

H. N. Esufally 7  2   

A. N. Esufally 7   3  

I. A. H. Esufally 7 4   5

M. A. H. Esufally 7     

R. Gopalakrishnan 7   3  

D. S. Weerakkody 5 3   2

Dr S. A. B. Ekanayake 7  6 3  

S. M. Enderby 7    5

W. M. De F. Arsakularatne 7     

A. S. Amaratunga 7 4 2  5

Note : 
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The annual agenda of the Board is pre-determined to ensure 

Company, come to the Board for review at appropriate 

31st March 2017, the Board considered a wide range of 

∫

∫ the strategy and performance of key businesses and 

∫

∫

∫

∫

∫

∫

∫ reports from the Audit, Human Resources and 

∫
for the Board and the Terms of Reference of Board 

∫
conformity to the regulatory framework.

as are deemed appropriate in the circumstances. The 

Annual Report.

The Board monitors compliance with policies and 

update the Board on a regular basis, giving the Board the 
opportunity to understand and explore issues in-depth. In a 
constantly evolving and challenging business environment, the 
Board recognizes that the Company’s Corporate Governance 

to review structures and processes across the Group, in order 

when needed to enhance the way the Group operates in the 
face of changing and challenging business environment.

secretarial services to the Company and they are responsible 
for ensuring Board procedures are followed and applicable 

direct access to their advice and services. 

the Company and its Group, the role of the Board and its 

There should be a clear division of responsibility at the head of 
the Company to ensure a balance of power

CORPORATE  
GOVERNANCE
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to the management.

the Group’s strategic plans, and the management of the day-

leads the development of strategy and oversees all aspects 
of the performance and management of the Group. Although 

authority delegated to him by the Board, he is supported in his 

Members of the Board of Management are set out on pages 
42 and 43 of the Annual Report.

The Chairman is responsible for preserving good Boardroom 

the Board and ensures that the Board is in complete control of 

The Chairman leads the Board, developing the Board’s forward 

should allow full and free discussion, taking account of the 

high standards of Corporate Governance.

The Chairman also encourages expression of the broadest 
range of views, including those which may challenge 

Members and is regularly rewarded with robust, incisive and 
good humored debate.

∫

∫

sound decisions and monitor business performance.

∫
conducted.

∫

∫

planning.

∫
the Board develops a clear understanding of their views.

∫

Law, Human Resources, Corporate Governance and Risk 

to 41.

as to his independence/non-independence, annually, in 
the prescribed format and the Board has considered these 

The Independent Directors are independent of management 

materially interfere with or could reasonably be perceived 

on strategic and long term issues. 
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There is considerable importance placed on keeping the 

keep abreast with relevant regulatory developments, Corporate 

However, a process is available to circulate papers which arises 

accomplish their quest for knowledge on the business through 

regulatory environment and on specialized and complex 

ensures that all Directors are briefed on issues arising at 

for which detailed Agendas are prepared by the Secretaries in 

There should be a formal and transparent procedure for the 

The Board derives its strength from the background, diversity, 

is a key priority and is embedded in all Board recruitment 

Directors, of whom two are Independent, meets as required 

the suitability of the appointment and re-appointment of 
Directors to the Company and its Subsidiaries and to regularly 

is given on page 126 of the Annual Report.

director and annually reviews the suitability of directors. With 
a view to the longer term strategic focus, it determines the 
competencies, experience and skills it should seek in new 
Board members.

On the appointment of a new Board Member the following 
disclosure is made to the Colombo Stock Exchange and in the 

∫

∫

∫ the names of companies in which the Director holds 

∫ whether such Director can be considered ‘independent

∫ The number of shares held in the Company if any

to provide them with the necessary insights into business 

each other and with the Management, and also have the 

Management, especially, the Board of Management.

CORPORATE  
GOVERNANCE
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submit themselves to be re-elected by Shareholders at regular 

may be re-appointed for further periods of three years to a 

annually by the Board Chairman as part of the performance 
review process.

experience, independence and knowledge of the Board, its 
diversity and how the Board works together as a unit. The 
review is led by the Board Chairman and supported by the 

by the Board.

year, at which an assessment of the Board’s performance 

strategy development, the decision making process, Board 

and succession planning. Feedback was also sought on the 

of individual Directors. The review indicated that the Board 

 

made.

Shareholders should be kept advised of relevant details in respect 

pages 38 to 41.

The Company maintains an Interest Register in terms of the 
Companies Act No 7 of 2007 which contains the details 

process has also been established to capture Related Party 

in Contracts with the Company is set out on pages 138 to 

the Colombo Stock Exchange within the statutory period 

annually 

short, medium and long term strategies of the Company. 

causes of any adverse variance, if any, is reasonable under the 
business environment.

Companies should establish a transparent and formal procedure 
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on a salary survey conducted by the External Auditors of the 

The Company is primarily interested in providing a reasonable 

in a manner that will facilitate the achievement of corporate 

experience and the competencies needed to improve the 
overall performance of the Group. Hence the Company follows 

individuals.

review is disclosed in the Financial Statements.

The Board welcomes engagement with shareholders and 
encourages them to express their views at shareholder 

is of prime importance. Further the Members of the Board 

requested by Chairman. 

Statements, related reports and the Proxy are sent out to the 
shareholders 15 working days prior to the date of the Annual 

will be held on 30th June 2017 at the Level 6 forum of The 

Malalasekera Mawatha, Colombo 07.

Shareholders

and individual investors. The Board’s primary contact with 

analysts. Coverage of the Company by investment analysts is 
circulated to the Board.

announcement of interim results and preliminary year-end 

available on the Company’s website, www.hemas.com. This 
Annual Report produced for the year ended 31st March 
2017, is also available to all Shareholders on the Company 
website or in paper form on request. The website also provides 

CORPORATE  
GOVERNANCE
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have to the Company.

The shareholders are invited to communicate and constantly 
be in touch with the secretaries/registrars in order to gather 

secretaries/registrars maintains a record of all shareholder 
correspondences.

The Company 

During the year under review, the necessary disclosures with 

to the Financial Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 
March 2017 found on page 228 to the Annual Report.

prospects

The Board, through the Management is responsible for the 

Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries in accordance 

The Financial Review from pages 16 to 21 provides a fair 
assessment of the Group’s performance and results for 
the year. All subsidiaries of the Group are governed by 

framework for the Group is in place which enables the 

companies and the performance is monitored using, inter alia, 

by the unlisted subsidiary companies are reviewed quarterly 

entered into by the unlisted subsidiary companies is placed 

of the Company. 

is set out on page 144 of the Annual Report. 

sound system of internal control

control system to safeguard the assets of the Company and 
ensure that accurate and complete records are maintained. 

and risk management. Strategies adopted by the Company to 
manage its risk are set out in its report on Risk Management 
on pages 114 to 119. A comprehensive budgetary process is 

year and its achievement monitored monthly, through a 

regularly evaluates the internal control system across the 

Board. The Board has reviewed the internal control procedures 

The Management, under the supervision of the Chief 

for establishing and maintaining adequate control over the 

pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 

Financial Statements in accordance with Sri Lanka Financial 

that receipts and expenditure are made only in accordance 

the Company and provide reasonable assurance regarding 

on the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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assessment, the Management concluded that, as at 31st March 

procedures and may not prevent or detect misstatements. 

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

During the period covered by this Report, there were no 

charter which has been approved by the Board. The Audit 

and extent of the Non-Audit Services provided by the External 

value for money. 

The Code of Ethics and Business Conduct provides 

Hemas are expected to maintain and is a common thread that 
applies across the Group. Further each employee is responsible 

in-turn build values and enrich lives.

The Code of Business Conduct explains to Directors their 

issues which may arise and the procedure to be adopted if 
the rules are breached. The Group operates a Whistleblowing 

enables employees to report, anonymously if they choose, 

fraud and any other act or conduct that may be deemed illegal 
or unethical.

the complainant is known, the complainant is kept updated. If 
the complaint is serious in nature, the same will be escalated to 

All members of the Board and the Senior Management of the 

Conduct for the year ended 31st March 2017.

CORPORATE  
GOVERNANCE
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The Board shall comprise of at least two Non-

total number of Directors as NEDs whichever is 
higher.

Compliant

There are ten Directors of whom seven are 

Component of Independent 
Directors

Minimum of two Directors or one third of 
the NEDs whichever is higher should be 
independent.

Compliant

Four of the Seven NEDs are Independent 
Directors

Independence/Non-
Independence

independence or non-independence against the 

Compliant

Non-Independence.

Directors 

The names of the Directors who are deemed 
to be independent as per the criteria to be 
disclosed in the Annual Report

Compliant

Refer page 130 of the Annual Report.

The board shall specify if the criteria for 
independence is not met by a Director and the rules.

A brief resume of the Director which includes Compliant

Please refer pages 38 to 41 of the Annual 
Report. 

A brief resume of the newly appointed Directors 
should be provided to the Colombo Stock  

Compliant.

The Company furnishes to Colombo Stock 
Exchange a brief resume of a newly appointed 

be independent.

directors

Compliant

of the Annual Report.

Compliant

of the Annual Report.

 

independent.

directors

Compliant

pages 124 to 125 of the Annual Report.

Disclosures required to be made 
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Compliant

Please refer the RPTRC report found on page 
122 to 123 of the Annual Report

Company and the Chairman of the RPTR 

Compliant

The Chairman is an Independent Non-

RPTRC of Subsidiary
The listed Companies in the Group has its own 

documented and communicated to the Board of 
Directors.

Compliant

 
Immediate disclosures with a value exceeding 10% of the Equity or 

5% of the Total Assets whichever is lower, OR if 
the aggregate value of all non-recurrent Related 

amounts to 10% of the Equity or 5% of the Total 

Financial Statements.

Compliant

same related party

N/A

Disclosure in the Annual 
Report

Compliant

Compliant

Please refer page 228 to 230 of the Annual 
Report

Compliant

Please refer page 122 to 123 of the Annual 
Report

they are in compliance with the rules pertaining 
Compliant

Please refer page 122 to 123 of the Annual 
Report

CORPORATE  
GOVERNANCE
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with stakeholders, the Board aims to present relevant 

and its Group companies. This is done through adhering to 
principles of openness and substance over-form and striving to 

all stakeholders.

The Board welcomes engagement with shareholders and 
encourages them to express their views and vote at General 

appropriate for the Company investor base to facilitate 

methods of hearing from shareholders and responding to their 

discussion of the Company’s strategy, goals and performance. 

Stock Exchange and through press releases.

The Company’s website is regularly updated with all recent 
Annual Reports and media releases.
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POSITIVE 
CHANGE,

TOGETHER
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This is the third sustainability report published by Hemas 
Holdings PLC. 

trending is shown. For the purpose of providing context, we 

report. 

Hemas Holdings PLC is a public limited liability company 
incorporated in Sri Lanka on 10th December 1948 under the 
Companies Ordinance No. 51 of 1938 and re-registered under 
the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. The ordinary shares of the 
Company are quoted on the Main Board of the Colombo Stock 

Place, Colombo 2.

sources and validated by senior management. This report 

auditor Ernst & Young.

In terms of restatements, there have been no restatements 
from 2015/16 to this year.

report may be read together with the Hemas Holdings PLC 
Sustainability Report 2014/15 and the Hemas Holdings PLC 
Annual Report for 2015/16 as well as our website www.
hemas.com. 

REPORT PROFILE, SCOPE 
AND BOUNDARY 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the G4.0 

found on page 111 to 112. 

We welcome you to get in touch with us for further 

 

No 75, Braybrooke Place
Colombo 02.

 

www.hemas.com 
www.hemasoutreach.com 
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• Responsible Corporate Behaviour
• Engage key stakeholders
• 

• 

whilst considering social, ecological 
requirements and economical impact  

• Sustainability
• Environment
• Social 
• Workplace 
• Human Rights

Development in Sri Lanka in partnership 
with Ministry of Child Development and 

ensure business sustainability.

address issues related to sustainability.

Economy Social Environment 

 ENRICHING LIVES PLAN: OUR SUSTAINABILITY VISION AND FRAMEWORK

SUSTAINABILITY  
REPORT
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This approach was formally branded ‘Abhimana’ in 2014 with 

the dignity of a life lived well and to ensure that our employees 

and that our consumers are proud to be using our products 
and services. 

Abhimana was unveiled to the employees of Hemas through a 

As part of this, we ensure that prior to taking any business 
decisions, all social and environmental aspects are taken into 

evaluated our key impacts in a process moderated by a third 

environment and economic impacts that were material to the 
Hemas Group.

the company 
wants to play in 

society

How the  
company sets 

 
and engaging  

with its 
stakeholders

The depth of 
analysis of 

the risks and 

faced by the 
company

Establishes its 
commitment and 
intent regarding 

accountability

Accountability 
Incorporated  

with management 
and good 

governance

Tracking 
performance 
and keeping 
stakeholders 

informed

Quality of values
stakeholders

Environmental management 
systems

Measuring 
sustainability 
performance

values
Engaging in  

dialogue
 

Workplace
Commitment to 
external charters

Global standards of 

Social
Sustainability 
governance 
prodedures

Sustainability 
strategy 

Responding to 
stakeholder  
feedback

Addressing risks  
Human Rights

Core governance 
procedures

External assurance

policies

The Hemas Sustainability Approach has been formulated around the STING Consultants’ Corporate Accountability Model
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Labour rights of outsourced/ 
contract workers

Training and skills development
Diversity
Local hiring
Local sourcing

groups

stereotyping and responsible 
message

Energy usage
Water usage

Environmental accidents
Compliance
Stakeholder engagement
Supply chain responsibility – labour 

Community impact – economic, 
social and environmental

High       Medium       Low       Internal        External

SUSTAINABILITY  
REPORT

Enriching Lives Plan 
The Hemas Enriching Lives plan was launched in April 2015 

in partnership with the Group's Risk team and was moderated 
by a third party consultant.

Supply chain

Community

Goals

Indicators

Achieving Abhimana Principles

 
risk areas

 
impact areas

Impacts and risks were analysed and assigned a score, which 

the most material for Hemas Holdings.
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As shown below, the material issues have resulted in 38 goals which are monitored through 148 indicators. The 38 goals are aligned 

 denotes that over 70% of the Hemas Group has achieved the corresponding goal
 denotes that between 30 – 70% of the Hemas Group has achieved the corresponding goal
 denotes that 30% or less of the Hemas Group has achieved the corresponding goal

100% of outsourced/ contract workers should be 

minimum wage, payment of EPF/ETF, annual leave, 
etc.

inclusive and sustainable 
economic growth, employment 
and decent work for all.

own departments.

lives and promote well-being for 
all at all ages

goggles, ear plugs, safety gloves etc., depending on the 

and minor accidents occurring on site each month 

month - i.e., refers to road accidents for FMCG/ JLM/ 

should be screened annually for Non-communicable 

safety, including ingredients, dates of manufacture 
lives and promote well-being for 
all at all ages

100% of products should be stored in a clean and safe 

100% of food items purchased are from suppliers with 



62 HEMAS HOLDINGS PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

Customers should have access to safety equipment, 

100% of menu items should carry the necessary 

training per person should be at least 16 hours, each 

labour categories should have a minimum of 8 hours 
of training per year. 

In progress

for all and promote lifelong 
learning

By 2020, 25% of employees across the Hemas Group 

includes employing women in the sales rep force of 

In progress
gender equality and empower 
all women and girls

  

residents from the local community 
within and among countries

from across Sri Lanka, as opposed to imported from 

problem in order to achieve this goal. 
By 2017, minimum 0.5% of employment for each sector In progress

SUSTAINABILITY  
REPORT
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For FMCG, generate work for women in the 

women who could be considered to be in a vulnerable 

100% of all ads should be reviewed against the 

Head prior to release. This is done to ensure cultural 

and that stereotyping does not occur.

In progress

should be reduced by 5% 
In progress

sustainable and modern energy 

change and its impacts

In progress

water or rain water instead.

In progress

waste generated and should monitor volumes of waste 
generated per month. 

biodiversity loss

by 15% per year by increasing the volume of waste 
that is reused/ recycled. 
Goal for 2020 - 50% of packaging for all products 
should be made using biodegradable materials 

content should increase. 

Largest 25% of local suppliers and distributors for all 

conduct biennially 

In progress
infrastructure, promote 
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or overseas suppliers if the sector decides this is 

human rights standards, as well as their environmental 

year. 

100% of waste water should be treated prior to 
release, and treated waste water should be tested on a 
quarterly basis. 

lives and promote well-being 

resilient and sustainable
Garbage should not be dumped in the local community 

Regular community feedback should be obtained twice 

occurred. 

In progress

which should be tested on a quarterly basis. lives and promote well-being for 
all at all ages

All waste chemicals and other hazardous waste should 
be disposed of in a safe manner. 

All chemicals, oils, etc., should be stored in a safe 

to ensure that gas leaks, fuel leaks, chemical leaks and 
spills do not occur. 

 All legal requirements related to the environment 
lives and promote well-being for 
all at all ages

SUSTAINABILITY  
REPORT
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accountable for their progress, thereby entrenching the ‘Enriching Lives Plan’ in the management agenda. The scorecards are an 

Sector Wise Performance

Achieved In Progress Not Started

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

100

FMCG JLM & MSJI Pharma Hospitals Vishwa Mobility Leisure, Travel,
& Avia�on

HHL

Not Started In Progress Achived

46%

30%

24%

2016/17

Not Started In Progress Achived

26%

42%
32%

2015/16
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Our Stakeholders 
As a conglomerate with key interests in wellness, leisure and 

our businesses as our stakeholders. 

• Investors 
• Employees 
• Customers 
• Suppliers & Business Partners 
• The Community 
• The Environment 

Engaging with our stakeholders 

component in the Group’s sustainability management strategy. 

key stakeholders and engage with these stakeholder groups 

years. We have also obtained the services of our external 

engagement mechanisms at sector level remains a concern and 
will be a priority in the coming year. 

includes a summary of the channels we employ when engaging 
with each key stakeholder group, together with the topics and 
concerns raised. 

SUSTAINABILITY  
REPORT
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Our responsibility to those who provide investor capital to 

long term sustainability. In this endeavour, we have focused 

which in turn would provide worthy returns to our investors in 
the short, medium and long term. 

Our commitment to our shareholders is that the Board and 

towards this end that we have introduced numerous best in 

Hemas and the sectors we operate in. The many accolades 

endorsement of this commitment to business excellence. 

LMD

Hemas at No. 09, up two places from 2015. This year’s ranking 

Silver and 37 Bronze medals to be ranked in the 9th place.  

two private sector commercial banks and two of the leading 
apparel manufacturers in Sri Lanka.

Reasons for Engagement:

Methods of Engagement:

Key topics covered

Our Commitments: 
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strategy sees us work with a wide network of partners while our inward 

processes to face this new world order.

incubator and seed accelerator program, had its third round of successful business pitches this year. Slingshot has led to 

SUSTAINABILITY  
REPORT
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Reasons for Engagement:

Methods of Engagement:

Key topics covered

Our Commitments:

The Hemas Way
The Hemas Way is the employee code of conduct which 

living the Hemas values. The Hemas Way is thus a personal 
commitment of how day to day business will be conducted 
and the behaviour expected when dealing with the company, 

community. Inherent in the Hemas Way are the highest levels 

of an employee’s commitment to and compliance with all 
policies and guidelines that are in force within the Group 

Media Policy, IT Policy, Whistle Blowing Policy, Workplace 
Policy, Human Rights Policy, Social Responsibility Policy, 

in both English and Sinhala. The Group HR Director acts as the 

Total Number of Employees

Male Female

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

Wellness LTA Mobility Other

Hemas Group - Total No. of Employees,
by Gender

Male Female

3,658

1,568

SUSTAINABILITY  
REPORT



73HEMAS HOLDINGS PLCANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

 

F F F F F

Total No. of permanent 
employees

2012 1155 3167 702 187 889 161 30 191 174 71 245 3049 1443 4492

Total No. of employees 
on contract

70 72 142 211 30 241 292 3 295 36 20 56 609 125 734

1227 217 1130 33 210 301

Total No. of employees 
from manpower 

457 173 630 0 7 7 0 0 0 3 3 6 460 183 643

1400 224 1137 33 213 307

 

F F F F F

1 1456 995 2451 670 76 746 320 7 327 26 3 29 2472 1081 3553

2 270 123 393 88 55 143 68 16 84 63 38 101 489 232 721

3 49 32 81 64 53 117 24 5 29 16 11 27 153 101 254

4 78 40 118 27 16 43 18 4 22 23 14 37 146 74 220

5 159 16 175 31 8 39 9 1 10 44 16 60 243 41 284

6 36 5 41 14 5 19 6 0 6 19 2 21 75 12 87

7 12 9 21 7 0 7 2 0 2 2 4 6 23 13 36

8 5 3 8 4 3 7 2 0 2 10 2 12 21 8 29

9 14 3 17 5 1 6 4 0 4 3 1 4 26 5 31

10 1 0 1 2 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 1 4 0 4

11 2 1 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 3 1 4

12 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 2 0 2

13 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 0 1

Male Female

Wellness LTA Mobility Other

0 50 100 150 200 2500100 200 300 400 500

18-30
Years

31-40
Years

41-50
Years

50+

Hemas Group - Total No. of Resigna�ons
by Sector and Gender

Hemas Group - Total No. of Resigna�ons
by Sector 2016/17

18-30 Years 31-40 Years 41-50 Years 50+

722280

94
46
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1227 217 1130 33 210 301

F F F F F

18 - 30 Years 245 190 435 117 22 139 117 3 120 15 13 28 494 228 722

31 - 40 Years 122 50 172 27 5 32 59 0 59 12 5 17 220 60 280

41 - 50 Years 29 15 44 10 4 14 35 0 35 0 1 1 74 20 94

16 12 28 6 3 9 8 0 8 0 1 1 30 16 46

412 267 160 34 3 222 27 20 47 324 1142

18-30 Years 31-40 Years 41-50 Years 50+

885

287

69 27

Hemas Group - Total No. of New Hires
by Sector Age Group

Male Female

Wellness LTA Mobility Other

0 70 140 210 280 3500100 200 300 400 500 600

18-30
Years

31-40
Years

41-50
Years

50+

Hemas Group - Total No. of New Hires
by Sector and Gender

 

F F F F F

18 - 30 Years 316 262 578 96 42 138 97 12 109 39 21 60 548 337 885

31 - 40 Years 119 24 143 37 7 44 87 3 90 5 5 10 248 39 287

41 - 50 Years 21 6 27 11 0 11 26 1 27 2 2 4 60 9 69

9 3 12 2 3 5 8 0 8 1 1 2 20 7 27

Total 465 295 760 146 52 198 218 16 234 47 29 76 876 392 1268

SUSTAINABILITY  
REPORT
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F F F F F

18 - 30 Years 855 719 1574 351 112 463 200 22 222 89 41 130 1495 894 2389

31 - 40 Years 807 311 1118 298 64 362 159 7 166 77 33 110 1341 415 1756

41 - 50 Years 303 127 430 198 27 225 65 2 67 33 13 46 599 169 768

117 70 187 66 14 80 29 2 31 11 4 15 223 90 313

1227 217 1130 33 210 301

    Other [HHL, Corporate Services, Hemas Development, Vishwa BPO & N-Able

At our Hotels sector, the HR Vision is to be the model in 
People Management and Leadership in Service Excellence 
in the Hospitality Industry in Sri Lanka. Its strategy centres 
around - 

• Building a strong employer brand to become the ‘Employer 
of Choice’ in the Hospitality Industry.

cadre from 900 to 2500 by 2020 in oder to facilitate the 

employees.

The dearth of a strong labour force poses many challenges to 
the Hospitality sector, which over the next few years will see 

that Serendib Leisure builds a strong employer brand in order 

brand, the sector will focus on our strengths which include 

unique culture and work environment, the focus on employee 

group hotels undertook an employee engagement survey for 

survey among blue collar workers. Both surveys helped raise 
key issues. 

building leaders at all levels. Along with the launch of a high 

that focused on building self awareness, understanding 
leadership styles and building a deep understanding of how 
to drive performance as a bi-product of nurturing talent.

• Customer Service – The ability to always see things from 

• Team Building – To enhance synergy and help employees 

programmes were facilitated across the Group.

• Technical Training – Becoming experts in every area of 
discipline, striving further every year and adding to the 

businesses year on year.

• Health and Safety – For the safety of our own employees 
and ensuring the quality of our products are not 
compromised is one of the fundamental reasons why health 

without fail.
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Improving Diversity and Equal Opportunity Employment 
Hemas group has made a sustainability commitment that 
0.5% of its employees will be from the disabled community 
by 2017. We have already recruited several colleagues with 

a male dominated one in Sri Lanka, with reluctance among 
women to work in hotels. Our hotels have given special 

in an endeavour to improve the gender balance. Currently, 

only 16% of the workforce consists of female employees. The 
target is to increase this balance to 25% by 2020.

groups in the recruitment process. 

At our hospitals, 60% of the cadre is female while one special 
needs person has also been employed. 

The Hemas Women’s Network 

Women’s Day by taking the bold step of launching a 
women’s network. 

been made to create an inclusive environment and today, 
30% of the Hemas cadre is composed of women. The 
network, which will be composed of women, will work 
with both men and women to make Hemas a place where 
women can thrive. It was launched with the appeal that all 
employees watch for gender bias in their daily decisions 

for all employees. 

In a regional analysis of diversity in the workplace published by  

years in J.L. Morison's while ongoing dialogue takes place 

employees are represented in the union.

Employee Health and Safety
Across the Hemas Group, a voluntary wellness screening 

programmes. At sector levels, various eye camps and medical 
clinics were also organised as well as training on personal 

road map and a review of its OHS manual, procedures and 

in place at the sector include - 

FAI, MTI, LTI target assignment site wise and department 
wise. 

SUSTAINABILITY  
REPORT
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• Building capability of sector employees through OHS 
trainings from external trainer and external industry visit to 

and a safety pause. 

Employee Wellness Strategy

seeks to deliver best in class wellness services to employees 
across the Group. The wellness programme is designed, 
implemented and operated in such a way that creates 

We recognized that a culture of employee wellness can 
only be achieved by ensuring that it is deeply rooted within 
the Hemas corporate strategy, culture and value system. It 

voluntary global targets. 

help save employee lives, improve the health and wellbeing of 

undermine the development gains of past years.

Expert consultants concluded that a 93% of employees were at risk of developing at least one non-communicable disease, 

• Reduce blood pressure by 25%
• Reduce cholesterol by 25%

• Halt the rise of blood sugar 

• Reduce salt intake by 5%
• Reduce tobacco use by 5%
• Increase wellness training and awareness of stress/psychological wellbeing by 40%
• Increase the worksite healthscore to 50%

• At least two safety audits per year conducted by the 

Hemas Hospitals operates a work place free from any hazards, 

2016.
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Wellness Needs Survey A random sample of the workforce voiced their 
views on what wellness needs they had and the 
challenges they face 

Human Performance 

Corporate Athlete 

To create awareness on energy management 
for the top 80 of the group 

Healthiest Workforce 
Launch Campaign launch to be the healthiest workforce in Sri 

Lanka 

Employees were given the opportunity to pledge 
to be healthier and happier and witness the Hemas 
Wellness message. 

Fit for Life 
Group

Hemas.life Digital wellness 
that gives access to wellness related topics and 

Currently 733 employees are registered on the 

Wellness Health Screening 
Wellness Health screening out of the workforce to be screened should be 

considered as a  resounding success and a hospital 

the High risk group. 

partnership
Partnered with Wellness and Health expert 

recommending best in class mechanisms into 
the wellness  model for employee wellbeing 

has worked with a corporate that integrates 

philosophy.  

• Follow up heath screening for 300 employees

• Introduce an adequate number of automated blood 
pressure meters that can be reached  within 3-5 minutes 

meet their wellness goals

prompts using various channels 

• Install weighing scales in bathrooms 

• Get 40% of the workforce to check their blood pressure

SUSTAINABILITY  
REPORT
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• Introduce cookery classes to teach healthier food habits 

encourage an intake of 40 litres per month

• Increase the number of people who take the stairs instead 

content 

• Create and display tobacco policy and launch Tobacco/

Fit for life 

several aspects 

How do you feel about work and life
a�er star�ng this compe��on? 

Very Energized Same Energized More Exhausted

83%

1%
14%

How has your experience been thus far
being on this compe��on? 

Great Not Too Bad Useless

78%

21%

1%

How have your friends & family commented
on your a�er the compe��on? 

Posi�vely Nega�vely No Comments at all

86%

13%

1%

How is the quality of your trainer?

Very Good Not Too Bad Terrible

84%

14%
2%
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Employee Engagement 

was to maintain a high level of employee engagement and 
as such, we undertook awareness sessions and focus group 

Employees were also encouraged to share their ideas and 

Hemas Hospitals operates in a non-unionised environment 

and the senior management. Each department appoints a 

feedback and sharing such views the senior management. 

improvement in Employee Engagement Surveys between 
December 2014 and December 2016.  In order to generate 

handed over to Hemas at an extremely short transfer period 
of less than one month. During this period the company was 

programme which had team building aspects incorporated.

SUSTAINABILITY  
REPORT

Engagement Survey 2016 

work which in turn will result in the success of the group. 
A Dale Carneige study revealed that companies with 
engaged employees do outperform those without by 
202%. 

The survey covered all Hemas Group employees other 

for the survey which was conducted both online and 
in pen and paper format in the English and Sinhala 

level employees increased by 4 points. Similarly, among 

increase.

It was very encouraging to note upward movement on 

Leadership, Customer Focus, Managing Performance, 
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Hemas Future Leaders Programme
The long term sustainability of Hemas Group lies on the strength of the 

right place. By marrying succession planning and leadership development, you 

can help managers develop those skills.

partnered with Hemas to create an 18 day programme, spread over 9 months - delivered twice in Bangalore and once in Sri 

in Bangalore. Alongside this, Hemas Future Leaders have to work on Hemas business problems outside of their own industry. 

themselves and helps them new approaches to business and their way of life. The Johnson & Johnson Human Performance 

challenges of life and work. 

taken in 2017. 
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Reasons for Engagement:

Methods of Engagement:

Key topics covered

Our Commitments:

The diversity of our Group enables us to work with customers 
from across the spectrum, both local and foreign. We 
recognise that our performance hinges on the quality of the 
products and services we deliver to our customers. In keeping 

customers with integrity and responsibility and always try to 

concerns.

Hemas conducts regular checks on product safety and storage 

and to make sure the product is 100% safe.

departments to ensure honesty, transparency and defensibility. 

Hotels 
The Serendib Leisure group of hotels is driven by the pursuit 

groups of the Hotel Sector comprises of Travel Agents and Tour 
operators on the one hand and FIT Travellers on the other. This 

and the individual traveller segment targeted through brand 
websites, social media, publicity and direct mailers. The sales 
team undertakes constant monitoring of market trends and 

markets. 

During the year, Serendib Leisure -

world including to China, Russia, Australia, Germany, India, 
Middle East

while review sites such as TripAdvisor are responded to 
within 48 hours

• Constantly monitored compliance with health and safety 

• Engaged with the industry peers through the Hotel 

sector 

The FMCG sector categorises its customers into three mains 
segments – consumers, modern trade channels and retail and 
wholesale traders. Within the consumer group, the customer 
segments are further divided into four main categories to 

the consumer. As such, we have rigorous engagement methods 

the various consumer groups to build brand goodwill. 

Among the many engagements undertaken by the brands to 

that directly touch the lives of consumers helps improve the 

this, Baby Cheramy conducted workshops for mothers with 
the help of midwives to educate mothers on new-borns 
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care while Fems conducted programmes to educate young 
girls on the importance of feminine hygiene.

• Clogard conducted dental awareness programmes and 
dental camps for school children with the help of Dental 
Therapists. We have always believed that using reliable 
and trusted grass root level Health Care Providers such as 
Dental Therapists increases the credibility and relevance of 

reached out across the country with the message of 

does.

store.  

Our focus on aligning our strategies and plans to those of 

Modern trade channels provide space for us to grow our 

Macro-economic factors have a large impact on this segment 

understanding with the customer. Such engagements takes 

customer group, our overall strategy revolves around superior 

loyalty programme of Hemas Consumer. Arunodaya was 
successfully rolled out to 1,022 outlets island-wide during 

the business.

Another highlight during the year was ‘Athwela’ phase 2 
organized by the FMCG Abhimana team for families of retailers 
from the North Central province. The families were invited to 
Dankotuwa for a one day programme which included a factory 

leading a happy life, session on Hemas and its approach to 
Corporate Social Responsibility by Ms. Shiromi Masakorala, an 

is designed to help retailers gain insights about the Company’s 
philosophy towards stakeholders and its focus on maintain 
high quality in manufacturing.

Diethelm’s customers consist mainly of Tour operators, Direct/ 

value for price and are customized to each request. Market 
demands and customer behavior are constantly changing 
factors and are unique to each market and as a DMC, our 

requirements of each market.

Hemas Hospitals categorises its key customers into 

medical services 

SUSTAINABILITY  
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Across all three customer segments, the strategy has been 

increasing new customers.  

those with line operators, importers and exporters, 

through exemplary service levels and the adaptability and 

invested further in technology to ensure a high quality of 
service. 

J.L. Morison's promises its customers & consumers wellness 

cost and convenient availability. The company which has a 

brand names like Morison’s gripe mixture, Lacto calamine and 
Valmelix which has won the hearts of Sri Lankan consumers. 
Medical Professionals all over Sri Lanka depend and trust 

government sector, private sector hospitals or in general 

range of products both own and distributed brands enable 

smiling.

Listening to customers 
The FMCG sector obtains feedback through a consumer care 
hotline which is in place to address product or packaging 
related issues. The hotline number is displayed on our 
packaging. Based on customer feedback thus obtained, 
during the year we carried out improvements to the fragrance 

quality improvements to Diva soap. Diva Powder was also 
reformulated to minimise residue during wash.

The Diethelm business model focuses mainly on the B2B 

as advocates. Engagement takes place mainly in the form 

account handlers and agents. 

year by assigning dedicated agents to manage all key opinion 
leaders and opinion formers. As a hospital, maintaining high 

feedback on the hospital experience in order to ensure 

The Air Services segment operates three companies who categorise their main customers as follows. The table also shows the 

Forbes Air Services Direct Customers, Emirates Online 
customers, Premium Leisure, MICE, 

Sales visits, FAM tours, one on one sessions 
with Senior management 

The sales team covered a 900km road show, 

Hemas Air Service Travel Agents The sales team follows a daily/weekly 

Through regular EDM and SMS campaigns 

B2B and Direct Customer groups



HEMAS HOLDINGS PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

safety 

drug licensing and cold chains. We have in place strict quality 
systems and processes to constantly monitor our compliance 
levels. 

Diethelm’s responsibility to its end customer is to ensure the 
health and safety of its guests

• undertakes regular visits to measure the quality and 

suppliers carry requisite insurance and licensing 

suppliers to ensure safety 

• frequent vehicle quality assurances 

• Looked at the formats of the feedback forms for the 3 
hospitals   

• Implemented new feedback process for the 3 hospitals    

The NPS survey was repeated in November 2016 with results 

in ensuring the safety of its products. All new product 

approvals before commencement. 

The FMCG sector’s product development process involves 

claim development. During the year, the sector marked 
its re-entry into the skin care category with the launch of 

relaunched during the year while we expanded into the 

premium products. During the year, we addressed some of 
these challenges by introducing a larger soap bar for Baby 

categories. Also entered faster growing premium segment of 

J.L. Morison's also made several product launches during the 

shaving gel/face wash while relaunching the packaging of 
Gripe Mixture Regular. 

SUSTAINABILITY  
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Reasons for Engagement:

Methods of Engagement:

Key topics covered

Our Commitments:

 The Hemas Way of responsible business encompasses building 

our business partners, from micro entrepreneurs to large 

The Hemas Group is governed by a robust Board-approved 
Procurement Policy which sets the standards by which 
we engage with our business partners, be they agents, 
distributors, or suppliers. The Group Procurement Policy sets 

ensuring the best interests of the Group are maintained during 
procurement. Purchases of goods and services above pre-
determined limits also require the approval of the Procurement 

members, who are also given training and awareness on how 
they may adhere to the policy’s protocols in their day to day 

company to provide Sri Lankan's with the world’s most trusted 

The FMCG sector’s partner network includes its distributors 
and the suppliers. The sector’s approach to managing 
its distributors is to integrate their roles into the sector’s 

of key criteria such as price, quality, delivery, capability, 

Hemas. Suppliers who employ child labour or deliberately 
violate labour laws endangering the health and working 

while employees are expected to make full disclosure of any 

SUSTAINABILITY  
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with key suppliers through supplier reviews, developments 
discussion and knowledge sharing sessions. During the year, 

for distributors and also carried out enhancement of the 

technology. Where required, the sector works closely with 

developing new third party suppliers and signing forward 
contracts with them.  

principals that are aligned to the values and the vision of the 

Medicals India, Alcon Ophthalmic, L’Oréal India and Nivea 

chain management, J.L. Morison's will roll out a formal supplier 

Managing supply chains

supply chains across the group varies depending on the 

has been to infuse accountability and responsibility into 
every aspect of the supply chains. We have also set a target 
that the largest 25% of local suppliers and distributors for 

once a year.

storage. The company also conducts a Health and Safety audit 
and a Distributor Compliance Audit at all Distributor points 

storage and possesses all required licenses.

FMCG Sector

Raw material and Packing material 
Warehouse

Finished Goods Warehouse

Export Market Consumers
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Hotels Sector
The Hotels sector’s supply chain is governed by the Procurement Policy approved by the Board. There are 3 broad items procured 
by the hotels, namely, Fixed Assets and Indirect Goods, Annual Service Contracts and Direct Goods and Services.  During the year, 
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Across our businesses, key partners are engaged one on one 
on a regular basis to improve transparency and gain insights 
that enable the improvements of our various processes and 
products. These methods allows frank and open discussions 
which leads to quicker and deeper understanding of the issues 
that may arise. 

with the Minor Hotel Group, one of Asia’s largest and 
most rapidly expanding hospitality chains. The successful 

hotels managed by Minor Hotels – the Anantara Peace 

The Hemas Group has worked with a number of micro 
entrepreneurs and small and medium enterprise partners 
who have over the years, grown in capacity and capability. 
Wherever possible, our businesses assist such business 

and forward contracts. We also extend our resources to train 

As a policy, our hotels source much of the fresh fruits,  

community. These vendors are educated in the standards 
expected and how to improve their own businesses. 

Compliance and safety throughout the supply chain 
We consider the safety and health of our end product 

and medical storage are handled. Distributor points are 

improvement.

Diethelm Travels has been working with its partners to 
encourage sustainable travel products by spreading awareness 
among agents and clients.  The smaller operators within its 

the requirements to ensure sustainable tourism, especially 

elephant rides, wildlife safaris and visits to enclosures. The 

as elephant rides and visits to elephant orphanages and has 

environmentally and wildlife-friendly. 

Hemas unveils ‘SANDAMA’ logo 
to celebrate its partnership with 
Distributors.

Hemas Consumer Brands 
held its Distributor 

Face Hotel, Colombo.  The 
event was organized to 
recognize long standing 
distributors for their 

commitment towards the success of Hemas Consumer 
Brands. A highlight of the event was the unveiling of the 

with the company and its business partners.   

A special feature of the event was to recognise the 

brands. These brands are popular not only among Sri 
Lankan consumers, but, also in the Asian region, especially 

of the more popular brands are Baby Cheramy, Clogard, 

SUSTAINABILITY  
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Reasons for Engagement:

Methods of Engagement:

Key topics covered

Our Commitments:

Community 

management approach are governed by a need to consider 

our impacts in every way possible. Our engagement with the 

Piyawara 

to-date. Focusing on Early Childhood Care and Development 
in Sri Lanka, Piyawara was launched in 2002 in partnership 
with the Children’s Secretariat of the Ministry of Women and 

friendly preschools throughout Sri Lanka. The programme has 

Early childhood is the most important period of a child’s life. 
Around 80% of brain development takes place during these 
early years i.e. birth to 8 years. ECCD aims at developing the 

SUSTAINABILITY  
REPORT



HEMAS HOLDINGS PLCANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

and social skills. In terms of growth and development the 

Preschool programmes are designed to provide adequate 

Currently there are approximately 17,000 preschools in Sri 

managed by volunteers in rural neighbourhoods.

Piyawara thus focuses on key aspects within the framework of 

• Infrastructure development of preschools

made disasters

• Preschool teacher training

• Parental awareness programmes

• Partnering Sri Lanka Police on curtailing child abuse

Performance by teachers at the Annual Teacher Training Programme in Trincomalee
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Key achievements 
1. Increased number of children in preschools – Approx. over 

30,000 children have passed out to-date.

employed.

3. Increased awareness among parents and village 

over the years.

4. Improved teacher competency – 15 teacher training 

6. A model public-private partnership.

7. Support from our global network.

SUSTAINABILITY  
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Over 3,000 
Students

Proposed 3 new 
preschools

Wellawaya

Bogasewewa

Over 100
Teachers 

41  
Preschools

Anuradhapura

Polonnaruwa

Sigiriya

Kandalama

Kandy

Peradeniya

NuwaraEliya

Bandarawela

Pinnawela

Bentota

Hikkaduwa

Galle

Kitulgala
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Highlights of Piyawara this year: 

carried out its 15th Annual Teacher Training Program in 
Trincomalee from the 10th to 13th of August, 2016.  72 
Teachers from 41 Piyawara Preschools took part in the 
training program. These teacher training programmes are 
held annually and are designed to improve the skills of 
Piyawara pre-school teachers while also enabling them to 
engage with their colleagues from Piyawara pre-schools 
islandwide. 

success of the Piyawara programme and this year too, 
we conducted ten such parental awareness programs in 
Ratnapura, Matara, Wadduwa, Hirimbura, Galwadugoda, 

helped to educate 527 parents of Piyawara pre-school 
children. 

 Piyawara clinched the Gold award for Best CSR 
Programme run by a Private Sector for Women and 
Children Empowerment in Sri Lanka, at the 6th 
Professional & Career Women Awards 2016 organised by 
Women in Management. 

 The children of Hemas Piyawara preschool in Wadduwa 
were given a special Avurudu treat on 2nd April 2016 
when Group CEO Hemas Holdings Steven Enderby and 

to celebrate Avurudu with them.

Piyawara  
Hemas Piyawara Wins Gold for Best CSR Programme at 
Women in Management – The 6th Professional & Career 
Women Awards 2016

A Special Award from the Ministry of Women’s and Child 

‘Piyawara’

Best Community Care Company in Asia/ Best CSR 
Campaign in Asia, Singapore 2014. MORS Sustainability 

Commerce
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by an eminent Board of Trustees, chaired by the Dean of 

Roshan Mahanama, who will play a crucial role as trustees 

period of 12 months. 

SUSTAINABILITY  
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with Piyawara, Hemas has been focusing 

‘AYATI - a centre of excellence for children 

the patronage of Chief Guest, Hon. Ruwan 

by the Department of Disability Studies of the Faculty of 

the members of AYATI Trust Sri Lanka.

become fully integrated into the society. 

building spread across an area of 1.5 acres at the Ragama 
Medical Faculty. The Sri Lanka Navy, under the aegis of 
the Ministry of Defence, has provided manpower for its 

It will also provide a state-of-the-art training and research 
facility for undergraduate students and foreign graduates who 

will brighten the lives of many parents who have children with 

Hemas will play the role of facilitator by channelling the 

the public and private sectors. The center will be managed 
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In May 2016, heavy rains in many parts of the island resulted 

Hemas employees and the management came together to 

supply ‘Family Relief Packs’ which were handed over to the 

• Sending urgently needed FMCG Products to the people-in-
need. 

• 414 relief packs, worth approx. Rs 703,800/-provided by 
our employees from across the Group within 48 hours of 
the emergency request by the Group Sustainability Team. 

The other packs together with linen provided by our 
Hotels and Hospitals were personally delivered to the 
Divisional Secretary of Aranayaka on the 21st May 2016 
by the Hemas sustainability team members and a group of 

were coordinated by the Sri Lanka Army.

campaign inspired by the massive cooking campaign 

supplying over 1000 cooked meals both lunch and dinner 

various other divisions across the Group stepped forward to 
help prepare the meals. 

in three villages of Peramaduwa, Gomarankadawala and 

Claus. 

The Big Heart Project 

supports 119 children studying in Grades 1–5. These children 
receive a monthly allowance of Rs. 2,000/- deposited into 
their bank savings account through a standing order. Of these 
funds, Rs. 1500/- is meant for the child’s monthly expenses 

IT team members at the "Cook to Care" campaign
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while it is compulsory that the balance Rs. 500/- is saved.  The 

and quarterly progress reports are sent to Hemas.

and sector level to reiterate the values by which the Group and 
its employees live upon. This year, the Group-wide Abhimana 

Health and Safety Day, Environment Day, World Diabetes Day 

Employees from across the Group volunteered to drive home 

the 14th of November, the Abhimana team visited selected 

Thalawathugoda Hemas Hospital, Braybrooke - Hemas House 
and  Hemas Fort, from the 15th to the 18th of November with 

snack/porridge breakfast and tea without sugar to drive home 

where farmers thank the sun and mother nature, and farm 
animals for their support in providing a successful harvest. 

one family. This year, Abhimana Champions at the corporate 

Hemas Group "Abhimana Champions"

SUSTAINABILITY  
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and Thalawathugoda, Hemas Pharma, J.L. Morison's and 
Hemas House celebrated Thai Pongal from the 13th to 16th 
January 2017. 

The Abhimana Award was introduced to recognise the 

make sustainability a lifestyle at Hemas whilst reinforcing the 
core values and culture of our company. 

Following its formal launch in 2014, Abhimana saw much 

Award 2015/16. Across the submissions, it was obvious that 
the success of Abhimana was driven by our 18 Abhimana 
Champions and their volunteer teams well supported by the 
strength of their management teams.

Hemas Manufacturing Pvt Ltd. 

which the Group Sustainability team drives home the message 

cuture, code of conduct and recent event and changes in the 
company in order to keep employees abreast. This year, over 

including contract employees. 

2 under Athwela 360º program was held on the 19th January 
2017 at the Hemas Dankotuwa factory. This program reached 

company’s key stakeholder groups. Distributors and family 
members over 200 were invited to visit the manufacturing 
facility in Dankotuwa. 

towards the company. The FMCG sector’s future plans for 

Athwela Programme at Hemas FMCG Dankotuwa

Hemas Abhimana award winner - FMCG Sector for Athwela
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Avissawella. 

subsidiary of J.L. Morison, organized a Medical camp at 

2016. The company has so far conducted 6 free medical 
camps for the community around their premises. This year’s 

with doctors and the local temple where the camp was held. 

strengthening bonds among employees. 

and customer enhancement experiences. Senior members of 

As an outcome of the Niyamuwo program services provided 

order to standardise the services.

service providing skills.

with the forest department
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• To increase the interest of the target clientele to use 
Diethelm as their holiday provider in Sri Lanka which will in 

end of the tour. As an aggregate outcome this will help to 

Don Bosco College is a government owned school established 

warehouse. The school educates children from the vicinity 

Bosco reports a high tendency for drop outs. The Hemas 

past 3 years. 

The full booklist for 372 students for this year was donated at 

among the company, school, church, students and parents. 

Hospitals

to improve their access to resources and transform their 

Hospital Group. 

The expected outcomes of the project are; 

• To enable and encourage the youth to take ownership and 
look into areas of Entrepreneurship. 

• Improve the quality of life of the youth, by giving them the 

a strong component of our business intelligence and we are 

management and strategic planning process. However, we 

related impacts can be managed and minimised by listening to 

strengthen the understanding and bonds between each Hemas 
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Reasons for Engagement:

Methods of Engagement:

Key topics covered

Our Commitments:

of Hemas and each employee is a signatory to the Hemas 

emerging trends, that will help us leave a more gentle 

The Hemas Environmental Policy lays out the many dynamics 
of our Green Business philosophy. Across our sectors 

been built into the Hemas Enriching Lives plan, including 
measurement and analysis of energy and water use as well as 

During the year 2017, the Group sustainability division formed 

reducing the carbon footprint and developing systems to leave 

of engineering heads of all Hemas business sectors and has 

a regular basis.

 

1 Hemas Manufacturing Dankotuwa 3,823,032.00  4,007,616.00 41,552,000.00  43,773,000.00 

2 Hemas Manufacturing Welisara 166,808.00  134,571.00 6,958,000.00  4,968,000.00 

3 2,053,518.00  2,215,848.00 49,415,000.00  65,756,000.00 

4 Hemas Hospital Thalawathugoda 1,535,848.00  1,712,051.00 20,449,000.00  34,068,460.00 

5 Hemas Southern hopspital 587,203.00  706,539.00 11,137,000.00  13,216,000.00 

6 359,180.00  327,641.00 4,888,000.00  5,292,000.00 

7 J.L. Morison's, MSJ industries - Modara 813,096.00  968,880.00 8,809,000.00  9,656,000.00 

8
Colombo 03

193,780.00  203,090.00 1,593,000.00  1,830,000.00 

9
Road Colombo 03

76,513.00  81,620.00 467,000.00  604,000.00 

10 220,942.00  298,142.00 720,000.00  1,070,000.00 

11 Hotel Sigiriya 640,939.00 639,476.00 14,236,000.00 30,496,000.00

12 AVANI Bentota 1,509,361.00  1,318,332.00 40,644,000.00  42,010,000.00 
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13 1,948,391.00  1,972,851.00 32,785,000.00  39,797,000.00 

14 Club Hotel Dolphin 2,836,122.00 2,264,161 76,522,000.00 100,496,000

15 207,347.00  150,994.00 8,297,000.00  9,865,000.00 

16 43,132.00  44,548.00 2,204,000.00  5,280,219.00 

17 1,716.00  1,171.00 710,000.00  967,000.00 

18 Hemas House 895,274.00  1,265,955.00 9,955,000.00  10,655,000.00 

19 Hemas Fort 555,101.00  626,721.00 6,476,813.00  6,266,758.00 

 

For the FMCG sector which engages in manufacturing, being 
aware of the environmental impact and making the maximum 

sector has reduced its electricity usage through conversion 

possible. The FMCG plants have minimized both raw material 
waste and packaging material waste and have upgraded the 

discharge. 

SUSTAINABILITY  
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water while prime mover washing at the yard and an upgrade of worker rest-rooms 

premises. 

The Group’s Hotels are at the forefront of our environmental 

and annual basis. Our hotels operate under HACCP and ISO 
standards which govern the way we approach environmental 
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across the Group 
The Hemas Group empowered its employees to reduce 
their carbon footprint by launching Zoom across the 
Group. Zoom is a networking tool that allows employees 

devices including smartphones and tabs. Zoom also 
allows a user to share his screen or any other document 

register their Zoom account, and how to place and answer 

– they’re simple, convenient, and avoid the hassle of 

environmental footprint. 

Since it was established four years ago, the Hemas Green Club 

promote the message of environmental concern. Today, the 
club has 80 members and 16 Honorary Members comprising 
of Board and Management of Hemas Holdings PLC.

2. To build environmental awareness among our employees 

3. To make a visible behavioural change in our employees 
towards Mother Nature.

4. To build team spirit among the Group for a common cause 

5. To comply and complement the Group Environmental 
Policy.

6. To bring back the simplicity of life that we have abandoned 
over the years.

members
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The Club adopted abandoned baby elephant ABHIMAN two 
years ago, undertaking the responsibility of taking care of the 

the wild. With the support of Hemas employees and friends, 

to raise funds for Abhiman’s milk and medicine. The Group’s 
hotels J.L.Morisons and FMCG businesses came forward to 

enrich the life of Abhiman. 

website for the Elephant Transit Home  under the 

visited by over 1,500 people daily during weekends. The video 
documentary was produced by an expert team from Heritage 

Hemas. 

Green Excursions 
Trincomalee

for year 2016 - a visit to Trincomalee and rural villages in 

places of religious worship in Trincomalee. 

The second Green Excursion for Cub Member in 2016 was to 

circular trail. While there, the Hemas Green enthusiasts colour 

Launch of Elephant Transit Home (ETH) website by Director General  

Baby Abhiman fostered by Hemas Green Club members at Elephant Transit Home 
Udawalawa  

SUSTAINABILITY  
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Deputy Wildlife Commissioner and Mr. Ashwin Basnayake, our 
Green Club member from Hemas Pharma on the request of 
Mr. Priyal Ravindra, the Park Warden and Mr. Dayaratne, the 
Deputy Warden. 

building a shelter out of natural materials they found around 

The Dankotuwa plant nursery distributed 250 Mahogany and 
750 Jack plants to the Sri Lanka Army on the 07th May and 
11th October 2016. The nursery was set up in August 2013 as 

over 9,000 plants. 

The Hemas Green Club partners with the Think Green E-waste 

electronic waste for recycling. During 2016/17 the team 

Recycling CFL bulbs 
The Club collected and handed over 1,012 Nos CFL and 

creates awareness of the environmental consequences of the 
improper disposal of CFL bulbs. 

of wild life and street photography. Over 1000 submissions 
were received from employees across Hemas Group, and ‘The 
Best 65 Entries’’ were short listed and exhibited from the 07th 
– 09th December 2016 at Hemas House, Braybrooke Place.

farm

awareness of environmental wellness through healthy and 
sustainably grown produce. 

Excursion to Trincomalee by Hemas Green Club members 
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Ceylon chamber of commerce

Swiss Business circle Sri Lanka
American chamber of commerce Sri Lanka

chamber of commerce

Sri Lanka Malaysia Business council
Travel Trade sports club

Travel trade sports club

Ceylon tourism cluster
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General 
Standard 
Disclosures

External Assurance

Indicate if the Standard Disclosure has been 
externally assured. 

If yes, include the page reference for the External 
Assurance Statement in the report.

G4-1 8

G4-3 Hemas Holdings PLC 
G4-4 22-37
G4-5 75, Braybrooke Place, Colombo 02
G4-6 Sri Lanka 
G4-7 Quoted public company with limited liability, quoted on the Colombo Stock Exchange
G4-8 22-37
G4-9 6-7, 16-21, 22-37, 72
G4-10 72-73
G4-11 76
G4-12 89-91
G4-13
G4-14 59
G4-15 GRI G4, ILO charter 
G4-16 110

G4-17 233-235
G4-18 60
G4-19 60
G4-20 60
G4-21 60
G4-22 No restatement
G4-23

G4-24 66
G4-25 66
G4-26 69, 72, 83, 88, 94, 105 
G4-27 69, 72, 83, 88, 94, 105

G4-28 57
G4-29 57
G4-30 57
G4-31 57
G4-32 57, 111, 112

G4-34 44
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DMA and 
Indicators

Standard Disclosures required 

may already be included 
in other reports prepared 

these circumstances, the 

be found. 

cases, if it is 
not possible 
to disclose 
certain required 

cases, if it is 
not possible 
to disclose 
certain required 

provide the reason 
for omission.

cases, if it is not 
possible to disclose 
certain required 

the reasons why 

External Assurance

Indicate if the 
Standard Disclosure 
has been externally 
assured. 

If yes, include the 
page reference 
for the External 
Assurance 
Statement in the 
report.

G4-DMA 68
G4-EC1 67
G9-EC3 209-210

G4-DMA 104-109
G4-EN3 105-106
G4-EN6 106

G4-DMA 104-109
G4-EN8 105-106
G4-EN23 109
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G4-LA1 73-74

G4-DMA 71-81
G4-LA10 81

G4-DMA 71-81
G4-LA12 73

G4-DMA 93-103
G4-SO1 93-103
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to provide an independent assurance on the following elements of the 

accordance’ - Core guidelines.

We performed our procedures to provide limited assurance in 

Our engagement provides limited assurance as well as reasonable 

in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement conducted in 
accordance with ISAE-3000 and consequently does not enable to 

engagement. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion providing 
reasonable assurance.

the Report, and for maintaining adequate records and internal controls 

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion as to whether we have 

is not prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Global 

for any reliance on this report to any person other than the Company 

or for any purpose other than that for which it was prepared. In 

requirements of the Code for Ethics for Professional Accountants 
issued by the CASL.

• Interviewing relevant the Company’s personnel to understand the 

data.

Report.

for the year ended 31 March 2017.
• Comparison of the content of the Report against the criteria for a 

Conclusion
Based on the procedures performed, as described above, we conclude 

statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2017.

in all material respects, in accordance with the Hemas sustainability 

Chartered Accountants
16 May 2017

Colombo
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RISK  
MANAGEMENT
Risk management is vital to our strategy and to the 
achievement of the business vision. Our success as a Group 

generated by the businesses and the markets we operate in. 
In doing this we proceed with an embedded approach to risk 
management which puts risk and opportunity assessment at 
the core of the team agenda. 

Hemas adopts an approach that is aligned to business strategy 
to accelerate growth while reducing the environmental 

• Compliance with the Code of conduct.

• Adhering to all applicable principles and policies. 

Hemas acknowledges the dynamic business environment 

Management system that is in line with ISO 31000 – Risk 
Management. This promises us with a structured governance 

Establish the context

Risk analysis

Risk treatment

M
onitoring and reviewRi

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t



HEMAS HOLDINGS PLCANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

responsibility for risk management and internal controls.

extraordinary. A risk heat map is then developed based on the results of the risk assessment. Risks and their corresponding 

HHL Board

HHL Group  

 Group Risk  

Group Risk & Control

Risk Champion  

Heads of Divisions  
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appropriate responses.

• Risk must be managed by senior management with a detailed risk treatment plan.

• Low risks need to be monitored and periodically reviewed to ensure they remain acceptable.

RISK  
MANAGEMENT
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1 Country Risk Tightening macro-environmental factors and 
adverse impact arising due to the changes 

business operates

• Analyzing PEST factors and developing appropriate 
strategies

2 Credit Risk
bankruptcy

3 Environmental 
Risk

the environment

• Development of Group policies in order 

sustainability

4 Exchange Rate 
Risk movement in the exchange rates

• Centralized treasury advisory

• Managing exchange rates through appropriate 

hedging

• Consistent monitoring of forex rates and outlook 

5 Human Resource 
Risk

develop and retain skilled workforce

• Implement a well-structured talent management 

them in the long run

• Investments in strengthening employee brand image

6 Interest Rate Risk

due to changes in asset values which are 
linked to market rates as well as its impact on 
borrowing costs

• Centralized treasury management

• Interest rate trends and outlook are monitored on 
a consistent basis

7 Investment Risk Threat on sustainability of business models 
as a result of losses arising due to a possible 

return from that of the expected

• Detailed payback analysis before making an 
investment

new markets and growth prospects

8 Liquidity Risk
a result of payment delays by debtors, long 
stock residence period and early payment for 
creditors

• Centralized treasury management

working capital management

funding lines

• Consistent monitoring of asset and liability 
maturity mismatches
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9 Market Risk
policies,

• New entrants,

in the market causing loss of market share or 
market leadership in the relevant segments

• Regular monitoring of customer/consumer trends

• Monitor market data and strengthen the market

10
controls, failures of internal processes, people 
and systems as a result of natural and human disaster

• Internal audits on internal controls and compliance

11 Principal Risk Loss of principals or business partners for GSAs 
partners

• Regular assessment of service levels in order to 

• Consciously limit dependence on a single party to 

business partner

12 Product and 
Service Risk

Probability of a new product failing or demand 

• Develop strategies to get closer to customers and 
be responsive to their needs

13

14 Regulatory and 
Compliance Risk

procedures or ethical standards applicable to 
the group

• The centralized legal division assists and advices 

15 Risk that the Group may incur losses due 
to damage to our credibility or the value of 

value

• Maintenance of highest ethical standards at all 

• Proper adherence to the statutory and 

RISK  
MANAGEMENT



HEMAS HOLDINGS PLCANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

16 Social Risk

causing serious harm to the local people 
involved, and making businesses unsustainable 
in the long run

Subsidiary levels

17 Supply Chain Risk
industrial accidents or bankruptcy of key 
suppliers

• Test product quality control of suppliers for 

• Review key suppliers periodically to ensure they 
meet the rigorous quality standards

• Consistent engagement with a diverse pool of 

• Structured processes are in place to add value to 
our supplier base through livelihood development 
programs, technical support and guidance on 
enhancing quality

18 System Risk
delays in decision making due to inaccurate or 

computer systems

• Centralized IT division

failures

19 Business Probity 
Risk

process which creates lack of trust in business 
dealings

• Stringent internal controls

20 Technological 
Risk

Probability of technological changes adversely 

group.

• Analyze technological trends and update business 

21 Quality Risk
services

• Adequate quality control divisions across the 
Group to assure the quality throughout our 
processes

programs

22 Clinical Risk

23 Health and  
Safety Risk

The likelihood that an individual may be harmed 

a hazard
formed to closely monitor the health and safety 
aspects

consider crucial
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REPORT OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES 
AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the year under review, the late Mr Pradipta Mohapatra - 

 
 

The Board appointed Dr S. A. B. Ekanayake to take over 

 

Board

,   and 
 - Group Human Resources Director

Report.

secretaries of the Company acts as the secretaries to the 

members.

the performance of the individual, comparisons with peer 
group companies and reports from specialist consultants with a 

and externally. 

Leaders Program of the Company.

carried out by external consultants and steps were taken to 
improve engagement scores.

The Directors Emoluments are disclosed in Note 35.2 to the 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017 
found on page 230 of the Annual Report.
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• Review and approve as appropriate the terms of the 

• Review and approve the terms of the Company’s short 

• Review and approve the terms of the Company’s 

their directorships.

may be referred to it by the Board.

• Review the Human Resource Strategies of the Company.

16th May 2017
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Mandate

required by the Code.

Scope

by the Board of Directors of Hemas Holdings PLC and its 
listed subsidiaries, a RPTs Policy which is consistent with the 

Hemas Group.

Further, in accordance with the RPT Policy, the criteria for 

of Boards, and all members of the Senior Management teams 

order to establish greater transparency and governance. Also, 

and to provide annual disclosures.

listed companies as per the Code which require discussion 

and those that require immediate market disclosure, those 
that require Shareholder approval and RPTs which require 
disclosure in the Annual Report.

• Establishing the principles that guide RPTs which require pre 

require prior Board approval and therefore, can be reviewed 

the total RPTs and to review the economic and commercial 
substance of the RPTs.

• Providing guidelines which Senior Management must follow 

• Obtaining ‘competent independent advice’ from 

REPORT OF THE RELATED PARTY 
TRANSACTIONS REVIEW COMMITTEE 
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found on page 45 of the Annual Report 

During the year under review, the RPTRC considered and 

Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka.

companies and the necessary disclosures were made to the 
Colombo Stock Exchange.

for the year ended 31 March 2017 found on page 228 of the 
Annual Report. 

16 May 2017
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AUDIT COMMITTEE  
REPORT

and integrity of the Company’s Financial Statements and 

Statements of the Company in accordance with the Sri 

that the Company’s internal controls and risk management 

• Assessing the independence and performance of the 

to appointment, re-appointment and in appropriate 

undertaken by the External Auditors for the Group other 

the External Auditors.

Dinesh Weerakkody, two directors who qualify as Independent 

year ended 31st March 2017. Mr. Steven Enderby, 

Prasenna Balachandran, General Manager Risk & Control, 

Darshana Perera, former Group Financial Controller, Mr. Amila 

more detail.

to the Board of Directors each quarter by tabling the minutes 

under the Corporate Governance Report found on page 45 of 
the Annual Report.

Reviewed and discussed with Management the un-audited 
quarterly Financial Statements and the full year Financial 
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No. 07 of 2007 therein, presented a true and fair view of the 

systems that are used to prepare the Financial Statements. 

globally. 

Discussed with the Company’s External Auditors the 

them concerning the Financial Statements, as well as the 

General Manager, Risk and Control reported the key risks and 

The General Manager, Risk and Control regularly reported on 

Group. These comprise of updates on audits conducted and 
include those performed in the unlisted subsidiaries within the 

compliance with the established policies and procedures of 

reports are prepared for each quarter by all the companies in 

Group Internal Audit plan for the year is presented and its 

of the Internal Auditors, their skills and the resourcing 
requirements are also reviewed. 

Whistleblowing arrangements, investments and treasury 

detail during the year. 

monitors their independence and performance. Prior to 

Management reviewed the scope of External Audit and agreed 
on the plan for the year-end audit. The External Auditors' 
reports with Management responses for the year under review 

also had a private audience with the External Auditors prior to 

External Auditors had not been impaired by any event 

provided by the External Auditors and the level of audit and 
non-audit fees received by them. 

External Audit and recommended to the Board the re-
appointment of Messrs Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants 
as the External Auditors of the Company for the ensuing 

16 May 2017
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knowledge and experience in business acumen.

following members as at 31 March 2017.

the Annual Report.

indicated under the Corporate Governance Report on page 45 
of the Annual Report.

of the Board of the Company and its subsidiaries to ensure 

Board Refreshment Policy of Subsidiary Boards, Board Charter, 

be held on 30 June 2017.

 

REPORT OF THE NOMINATION AND 
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Mr R Gopalakrishnan refrained from taking part in the 

Board.

∫

∫

∫

relevant Subsidiary Board Chairman.

∫ Propose suitable guidelines for the appointment and 

the Main Board.

∫
the Board and provide feedback to the Board Chairman 

a manner that serves the interests of stakeholders and 
Shareholders.

∫ Monitor compliance with the Corporate Governance 
Guidelines.

∫

16 May 2017
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Sustainability remains a key focus area as we 
assess our impact on our environment and on 

plan in 2016/17, we measure and evaluate 
our sustainability goals against social, 
environmental and economic impact we have 
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 
ON THE AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY 
AND THE GROUP
General

Audited Financial Statements of the Company and the Group 
for the year ended 31st March 2017 and the Auditors’ Report 
on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Hemas Holdings PLC is a public limited liability company 
incorporated in Sri Lanka on 10th December 1948 under the 
Companies Ordinance, No. 51 of 1938 and re-registered under 
the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007. 

The ordinary shares of the Company are quoted on the Main 
Board of the Colombo Stock Exchange since October 2003.

Corporate Governance.

This Report was approved by the Board of Directors on 16 
May, 2017.

 Hemas Holdings PLC is the holding Company that 
owns, directly and indirectly, investments in a number 

incorporated into this Directors’ Report by reference. 
They contain details of the development and 
performance of the Group’s businesses during the 

that required for a business review.

 The measures taken by the Company to manage 

Management’ on pages 114 to 119 of the Annual 
Report.

2.  Future Developments

of focusing on enhancing the performance of its core 
businesses of Wellness and Leisure products.

Sector Reviews of the Annual Report.

3.  Financial Statements of the Company and the Group
 The Financial Statements of both the Company and 

and approved by two Directors in compliance with 

given from pages 146 to 235 of the Annual Report.

 The Group’s External Auditors, Messrs. Ernst & Young, 
performed the audit on the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31st March 2017. The Auditors’ 
Report on the Financial Statements is given on page 

Statements is given from pages 152 to 169 of the 

the Companies Act.

 The policies adopted are consistent with those 

6.1  Gross Revenue
 The Total Revenue of the Group for the year ended 

Note 3 to the Financial Statements on page 170 of 
this Annual Report.
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pages 146 to 147 of the Annual Report.

 An Interim Dividend of Rs. 0.40 per Ordinary share 
was declared and paid on 24th November 2016 for 

 The Directors recommended a Final Dividend for 
the year of Rs. 1.45 per Ordinary Share which will be 
payable on 11th July 2017 to Shareholders registered 
as at 3rd July 2017. The Total Dividend for the 
year under review will then amount to Rs 1.85 per 

 Prior to recommending the Final Dividend and 

Companies Act, the Board of Directors signed a 

Shareholder approval will be sought on the day of the 

Dividend.

 Income Tax on taxable income arising from the 

accordance with the provisions of the Inland Revenue 
Act, No. 10 of 2006 and deferred tax on all known 

been calculated and disclosed in accordance with the 

Taxes.

 Disclosures on Income Tax Expenses and Deferred 
Taxes are given in Note 7 to the Financial Statements 
on pages 172 to 175 of the Annual Report.

 The Group’s total Reserves as at 31st March 2017 

movement of the Reserves are given on page 149 
under Statement of Changes in Equity and in the 
Notes to the Financial Statements of the Annual 
Report.

 The details of Property, Plant & Equipment, 

Intangible Assets are given in the Notes 10 to 12 to 
the Financial Statements found on pages 177 to 186 
of the Annual Report.

 The Land and Buildings of the Group are revalued 

and carried at revalued amounts as at 31st March 
2016. The Directors are of the opinion that the 
revalued amounts are not in excess of the current 

are given in Notes 10 and 11 in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements from pages 177 to 185 of the 
Annual Report.

 During the Financial year ended 31st March 2017, 
the Company made several investments and 

item No 15 of this report.

12.  Divestments and Disposals
 The Group divested 50% of its shares held in Hemas 

 The details of the divestments arising from the 

in item 15 of this report.
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13.  Creditor Payment
 For all trade creditors/suppliers, it is the Group policy 

• Pay in accordance with any contract agreed with 

14. Directors

 The Board of Directors of the Company as at the 

Directors are set out in the ‘Board of Directors’ 

Directors of the Company as at 31st March 2017 are 

 Mr. H. N. Esufally – Chairman
 Mr. A. N. Esufally
 Mr. I. A. H. Esufally

 Mr. S. M. Enderby - 
 Mr. M. A. H. Esufally 
 Mr. W. M. De F. Arsakularatne 

 Mr. R. Gopalakrishnan 
 Mr. D. S. Weerakkody 
 Dr. S. A. B. Ekanayake 
 Mr. A. S. Amaratunga 

 Mr. Murtaza Esufally’s role in the Group was 
enhanced and he was made the Group Director 
Human Performance and Leadership in order to 
lead the strategic Human Resources thinking and 

whilst leading the Group to become the healthiest 
workforce.  

 It is with great regret that we are informing you that 
Mr. Pradipta Mohapatra, who served on the Board for 
over nine years, passed away on 13th March 2017 

the said date. 

Rules. Each of the Independent Directors has 

Company and the Corporate Governance Code, one 

Mr. A. N. Esufally, Mr. M. A. H. Esufally and Mr. W.  

unanimous consent of the Directors.

2007 shall not apply to Mr. R. Gopalakrishnan who 

elected as a Director of the Company. 

this Annual Report.

devolved with the responsibility of reviewing Group 
performance and providing oversight of Group’s 

Management are set out on pages 42 and 43 of the 
Annual Report.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS ON THE AFFAIRS  
OF THE COMPANY AND THE GROUP
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 Directors’ Interest in Ordinary Shares of the Company – Direct

  

Mr. H. N. Esufally 5,836,705 5,836,705
Mr. A. N. Esufally 2,283,585 2,283,585
Mr. I. A. H. Esufally 4,424,000 4,424,000
Mr. M. A. H. Esufally 5,946,500 5,946,500
Mr. R. Gopalakrishnan Nil Nil
Mr. D. S. Weerakkody Nil Nil
Dr. S. A. B. Ekanayake Nil Nil
Mr. S. M. Enderby Nil Nil
Mr. W. M. De F. Arsakularatne Nil Nil
Mr. A. S. Amaratunga Nil Nil

 Directors’ Interest in Ordinary Shares of the Company – Indirect

  

90,762,875 90,762,875

86,396,035 86,396,035

85,781,250 85,781,250
85,780,665 85,780,665

Ms. Sabrina Esufally 250,000 250,000

Mr. Adam Esufally 250,000 250,000

Ms. Sakina Esufally 2,000,000 2,000,000
Ms. Razia Esufally 250,000 250,000

ended 31st March 2017 is given in Note 35.2 to 
the Financial Statements on page 230 of this Annual 

Companies Act.

 The Directors have no direct or indirect interest in any 
contract or proposed contract with the Company for 
the year ended 31st March 2017, other than those 
disclosed on pages 138 to 141 of the Annual Report.

 The Directors have declared all material interests 
in contracts involving the Company and refrained 

interested. They have also disclosed their interest 
in other companies so as to ensure that they refrain 

interest.

 The Interests Register is maintained by the Company, 
as per the Companies Act. All Directors have made 

of the Companies Act. The related entries were made 
in the Interest Register during the year under review. 
The share ownership of Directors is indicated on page 
240 of the Annual Report. Entries were made in the 

Directors, etc. The Interest Register is available for 

the Companies Act.
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aggregate value exceeds 10% of the equity or 5% of the total assets whichever is lower as per 31 March 2016 Audited 

Leisure Asia 
Investments 
Limited

A wholly 
owned 

subsidiary of 
the Company

              6,495,061 15.3% Normal 
Commercial 

Terms

To facilitate the 
restructuring of 

Company’s Travel, 

Investment in Hotel 
Sector Property and 
enhancing the direct 
shareholding of the 

Company in Serendib 
Hotels PLC.

 There were no other recurrent Related Party 

of the consolidated revenue of the Group as per 31st 
March 2016 Audited Financial Statements, which 

out during the year are disclosed on page 229 of this 
Report.

 Further, in order to facilitate the restructuring of 

i. The Company accepted 5,668,908 shares of 

of the loan granted by the Company 
at a conversion price of Rs 115.06 per 
share which was disposed to Leisure Asia 
Investments Limited.

ii. The Company accepted 469,827 shares of 

loan granted by the Company at a conversion 
price of Rs 30.27 per share which was 
disposed to Leisure Asia Investments Limited. 

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS ON THE AFFAIRS  
OF THE COMPANY AND THE GROUP
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i. The Company accepted 7,500,000 ordinary 

Limited in the capital of Hemas Development 

Company under the restructure. 

ii. The Company accepted 38,349,000 
preference shares held by FAS in Hemas 

the ordinary shares by Forbes Air Services 

iii. The Company accepted 10,000,000 
preference shares held by Hemas Air Services 

due on the re-purchase of the ordinary shares 

by the Company.

Leisure Asia 
Investments Limited

A wholly owned 
subsidiary of the 
Company

shares of Serendib Hotels PLC from Leisure 
Asia Investments Limited at a price of Rs. 

value is Rs. 516,400,199.10  

Purchase of 10,165,975 ordinary non-

Leisure Asia Investments Limited at a price 

value is Rs. 182,987,550/-.

To facilitate the 
restructuring of its 

Hotel Sector property 
investments.

Leisure Asia 
Investments Limited

A wholly owned 
subsidiary of the 
Company

Disposal of 8,636,235 ordinary 

Limited to Leisure Asia Investments 
Limited at the price of Rs. 224.05 per 

Rs. 1,934,948,451.75.

The Disposal of 6,464,599 ordinary 

Limited to Leisure Asia Investments 
Limited at the price of Rs. 30.27 per 

Rs. 195,683,411.73

The Disposal of 31,853,310 ordinary 

Limited to Leisure Asia Investments 
Limited at the price is Rs. 115.06 per 

Rs. 3,665,041,848.60

To facilitate the 
restructuring of its 

Hotel Sector property 
investments.

To facilitate the 
restructuring of its 

Hotel Sector property 
investments.

Leisure Asia 
Investments Limited

A wholly owned 
subsidiary of the 
Company

The purchase of 211,230,477 ordinary 
shares of Leisure Asia Investments Limited 
at a price of Rs 24.15 per share which 

To facilitate the 
restructuring of its 

Sector.
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 The Directors declare that they have complied with 

dispose 100% of its stake in Forbes Air Services 

by the transfer of 7.5Mn shares held by Hemtours 

Limited to the Company as indicated in item 11 
above and the issue of 4,796,342 shares of Hemtours 

to Leisure Asia Investments Limited. The Company 
also disposed its 100% stake in Peace Haven Resorts 
Limited, Mowbray Hotels Limited and Hemtours 

the Registrars for the Company during the Financial 
Year ended 31st March 2017.

 During the year under review and up to the date 
of approval of this Annual Report, the Company 
maintained liability insurance and third party 

 The Stated Capital of the Company as at 31st March 
2017 was Rs. 5.74 Bn comprising of 572,733,467 

in Note 20 to the Financial Statements on page 200 

which can be obtained from the Secretaries upon 
request.

 The Company raised Rs 4.1 Bn through a rights issue 
of ordinary shares in 2015 and the funds are pending 

the funds were raised. The following disclosure is 

Colombo Stock Exchange. 

 The Company has sought shareholder approval to 

short term instruments at the Extraordinary General 

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS ON THE AFFAIRS  
OF THE COMPANY AND THE GROUP

Proceeds to 

fund strategic 
investment 

in the 
Healthcare 
and FMCG 
Sectors

4.1 Bn 2015/ 16 4.1 Bn - - The Right Issue funds have 

the fact that although we have 
evaluated many investment 

have been concluded.

We are retaining the Rights 
funds in investment grade short 
term instrument pending their 
deployment in accordance with 

Expected date of 

March 2019
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share is given in the Financial Highlights on pages 6 
and 7 of the Annual Report.

at 31st March 2017 are indicated on page 239 of the 
Annual Report.

 During the year under review, the Company made 
several allotments of shares under the Employees 

details of which are disclosed under shareholder 

 The Company did not issue any debentures during the 
year under review. 

 The Debentures of the Company consist of Ten 

unsecured redeemable 5 year debentures carrying a 
coupon rate of 11% p.a. payable semi-annually, at the 
face value of Rs. 100 each to raise Rupees One Billion 
to be matured on 29th April 2019.

 The number of ordinary shares held by the public 

respect to issues or grants under the Company’s 
share-based plans. Directors approve issues or grants 

accordance with the terms of Shareholder approval.

 The Company has established an Employee Share 

Company and its Subsidiaries whom the Board deems 
to be eligible to be awarded the shares. The Directors 

have not granted any funding to employees directly or 

shares under this scheme.

22.  Employment Policies

the best people, providing them training to 

religion and to retain them with the Group as long 
as possible. Health and Safety of the employees has 
always received priority in the HR agenda.

23.  Employee Involvement

concern them in the context of their employment 

procedures. Employees are kept well informed on 

intranet sites. More details on employee engagement, 

planning and talent development, can be found in the 

ownership through the provision of employee share 
plan arrangements which are intended to align the 
interests of employees with those of Shareholders.

and also in Note 33 in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements.

integral part of the Report of the Board of Directors 

Act.

26. Statutory Payments
 The Directors, to the best of their knowledge and 

been made up to date.
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 The Directors, to the best of their knowledge and 

every aspect of our businesses and we consider 

113 of the Annual Report.

 There have been no material events occurring 

Statements other than those disclosed in Note 30 in 
Notes to the Financial Statements on page 217 of the 
Annual Report.

 The Board of Directors has reviewed the Company’s 

the Corporate Governance Code, the Directors have 

to adopt the Going Concern basis in preparing the 

Group and the Company of the Going Concern basis 
in preparing the Financial Statements are set out 
in the Financial Review within the Business Review 

reference.

in Risk Management are detailed on pages 114 to 119 
of the Annual Report.

and comprehensive system of internal controls to 
ensure that proper controls are in place to safeguard 
the assets of the Company, to detect and prevent 

records are maintained and the Financial Statements 
presented are reliable. Monthly Management 
Accounts are prepared, providing the Management 
with relevant, reliable and up-to-date Financial 
Statements and key performance indicators. The 

reports, policies and procedures to ensure that a 
comprehensive internal control framework is in place. 
More details in this regard can be seen on pages 
124 and 125 of the Annual Report. The Board has 
conducted a review of the internal controls covering 

management and have obtained reasonable assurance 

therewith for the period up to the date of signing the 
Financial Statements.

Report is given on page 124 of the Annual Report.

31.  Corporate Governance

of Corporate Governance. The main Corporate 

pages 44 to 55 of the Annual Report. The Directors 
acknowledge their responsibility for the Group’s 
Corporate Governance and the system of internal 
controls.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS ON THE AFFAIRS  
OF THE COMPANY AND THE GROUP
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 To the best of their knowledge, the Board believes 

currently pending against the Company, which will 

34.  Appointment of External Auditors
 The Financial Statements for the year under review 

have been audited by Messrs. Ernst & Young, 

with the Company
 The Auditors, Messrs. Ernst & Young were paid Rs. 

Company. Apart from that, the Company has engaged 

As far as the Directors are aware, the Auditors do not 

with the Company.

 As at 16 May 2017, so far as each Director is 

with preparing their report, of which the Auditors 
are unaware and each Director has taken all steps 
that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to 

and to establish that the Auditors are aware of that 

of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, No. 30A, 
Malalasekera Mawatha, Colombo 07 on Friday the 30 
June, 2017 at 3.30 p.m. Shareholders who are unable 

Act, the Board of Directors hereby acknowledge the 
contents of this Report. 

For and behalf of the Board,

Chairman

16 May 2017
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DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN CONTRACTS 
WITH THE COMPANY

2017 2016

Mr. H. Esufally Dividend Income  421,235  -   
Mr. Steven Enderby Services Rendered  114,922  106,095 
Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne  IT Charges  74,618  56,460 

Mr. Pradipta Mohapatra  
 

Interest Expense

Centralised Services  20,160  1,093 

Mr. M. Esufally Services Rendered  293,457  260,560 
Mr. Steven Enderby IT Charges  28,086  22,494 
Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne  Interest Income  5,387  20,326 

Dividend Income  115,389  50,151 
Centralised Services  7,060  1,555 

Mr. M. Esufally Services Rendered  269  269 
Mr. Steven Enderby IT Charges  15,538  11,954 
Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne  Interest Income  5,602  368 

Centralised Services  4,623  41 

Mr. M. Esufally IT Charges  3,157  2,043 

Mr. Steven Enderby Centralised Services  628  -   

Mr. M. Esufally Centralised Services  1,538  -   
Mr. Steven Enderby IT Charges  9,278  6,583 

Mr. A. Esufally Interest Income  1,663  3,252 
Mr. Steven Enderby Dividend Income  38,399  -   
Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne Interest Expense  -   

Mr. A. Esufally IT Charges  21,678  14,454 
Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne Services Rendered  269  269 

Transport and 

Centralised Services  2,487  57 
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2017 2016

Mr. A. Esufally Corporate Guarantee 
Charges

 2,304  2,304 

Mr. Steven Enderby Centralised Services  510  -   
Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne IT Charges  2,322  1,529 

Dividend Income  29,211  30,052 
Interest Income  488  3,091 

Mr. A. Esufally IT Charges  7,912  7,108 
Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne Interest Expense  -   

Centralised Services  3,702  67 

Mr. A. Esufally Dividend Income  339  78 
Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne Interest Expense  -   

IT Charges  2,575  1,677 

Centralised Services  850  -   
Interest Income  -    2,611 

Mr. A. Esufally Interest Expense  -   
Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne IT Charges  1,461  722 

 Centralised Services  430  -   

Mr. H. Esufally Services Rendered  67,021  62,854 
Mr. A. Esufally IT Charges  2,071  1,614 
Mr. I. Esufally Dividend Income  9,003  27,000 
Mr. M. Esufally Interest Expense  -   
Mr. Steven Enderby Interest Income  12  2,718 

 Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne Centralised Services  1,981  3,089 

Mr. I. Esufally Services Rendered  32,675  28,130 
Mr. Steven Enderby Interest Expense
Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne IT Charges  2,817  2,308 

Dividend Income  4,500  27,000 
Centralised Services  3,141  1,532 

Mr. I. Esufally Air Line Ticket Sales
Mr. Steven Enderby IT Charges  11,264  10,847 
Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne Dividend Income  33,320  20,250 

Centralised Services  2,196  397 

Mr. I. Esufally Interest Income  375  84 

 Mr. I. Esufally IT Charges  3,305  2,186 

Centralised Services  277  -   
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2017 2016

Mr. I. Esufally IT Charges  1,239  772 
 Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne Centralised Services  1,404  -   

Mr. I. Esufally Dividend Income  22,906  5,000 
Mr. Steven Enderby Centralised Services  273  -   
Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne Interest Expense

IT Charges  46  -   
Interest Income  10,315  252 

Mr. I. Esufally Rental Income  29,051  25,127 
Centralised Services  158  -   
IT Charges  5,427  4,246 
Interest Income  2,876  1,927 
Interest Expense  -   

Mr. A. Esufally Interest Income  53,343  41,763 
 Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne    

Mr. A. Esufally Services Rendered  269  269 
Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne  Interest Expense

IT Charges  107  69 
Dividend Income  22,505  119,192 
Centralised Services  143  135 
Rental Expense and 
Service Charges
Car parking expenses

  Interest Income  -    7 

Mr. Steven Enderby Services Rendered  404  404 
Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne  Shared Services Expenses

IT Charges  5,683  4,161 
Interest Expense
Dividend Income  17,415  9,360 

  Centralised Services  419  66 

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN CONTRACTS  
WITH THE COMPANY
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2017 2016

 Mr. Steven Enderby Centralised Coporate 
Services

Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne Dividend Income  3,623  -   
Centralised Services  35  -   
IT Charges  1,792  1,910 

Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne Services Rendered  135  135 
IT Charges  1,481  1,273 
Interest Income  6,738  9,526 
Centralised Services  3,877  690 

  IT equipment and services

 Mr. H. Esufally Corporate Guarantee 
Charges

 638 

Mr. Steven Enderby IT Charges  7,518  5,626 
Interest Expense
Dividend Income  2,495 
Centralised Services  9,531  676 

Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne  Services Rendered  30,049  26,468 

Dividend Income  8,100  855 
Centralised Services  612  -   
Interest Income  6,135  14 

Mr. A. Esufally Interest Income  539  407 
Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne    

Mr. H. Esufally Interest Income  53  50 
Mr. A. Esufally Dividend Income  52,554  -   

 Mr. I. Esufally   

Mr. A. Esufally Interest Income  -    12,036 
Mr. Steven Enderby Corporate Guarantee 

Charges
 9,025  -   

Mr. Malinga Arsakularatne IT Charges  4,665  2,919 

Mr. I. Esufally IT Charges  3,908  408 
Interest Income  2,598  -   

  Dividend Income  7  -   

Mr. A. Esufally IT Charges  -    1,317 

Mr. I. Esufally IT Charges  678  248 
Centralised Services  30  -   

  Interest Income  714  1,022 

Mr. Steven Enderby Interest Expense  -   
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS'  
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board of Directors (Board) of the Company is responsible for 
the adequacy of the Company’s system of internal controls and 

the system of internal controls can only provide reasonable and 
not absolute assurance against material misstatements of losses or 

The Board is of the view that the prevalent internal control 

The Directors are of the view that the Company and its Group 

reviews and tests that they consider appropriate and necessary 

The Directors are responsible for: 

• preparing the Annual Report and the Group and Parent 
Company Financial Statements in accordance with applicable 

• preparing Financial Statements which give a true and fair view 

the Company enabling them to ensure that the Group Financial 

the assets of the Company and the Group and to prevent and 

Financial Statements: 

• the Financial Statements comply with IFRS as adopted for use 

been followed in preparing the Parent Company Financial 

• it is appropriate that the Group and Parent Company Financial 

the Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with the 

contains a fair review of the development and performance of the 

Chairman 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HEMAS HOLDINGS PLC

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of 

BOARD’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

internal controls as Board determines is necessary to enable the 

SCOPE OF AUDIT AND BASIS OF OPINION

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 

give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that 

OPINION

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS

b) In our opinion:

and

- The Financial Statements of the Group comply with the 

Colombo
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Group Company

Year ended 31 March 2017 2016 2017 2016

Notes Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Revenue

Cost of Sales - -

4

- -

Share of Results of Joint Ventures 15 - -

Share of Results of Associates 16 - -

Finance Cost 5

Finance Income 5

6

Income Tax Expenses

Non-Controlling Interests - -

Rs. Rs.

Earnings Per Share 8

Diluted Earnings Per Share 8

Dividend Per Share
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Group Company

Year ended 31 March 2017 2016 2017 2016

Notes Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

- -

- -

Associates 16 - - -

- - -

- -

Associates 15 (565) - - -

Non-Controlling Interests
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Group Company

As at 31 March 2017 2016 2017 2016

Notes Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Non Current Assets

11
 -    -   

Intangible Assets
Investment in Subsidiaries 14  -    -   
Investment in Joint Ventures 15  -    -   
Investment in Associates 16  -    -   

Deferred Tax Asset  -    -   

Current Assets
Inventories 18  -    -   

Tax Recoverable

Cash and Short Term Deposits

Stated Capital

Retained Earnings

Non-Controlling Interests  -    -   

 -    -   

Income Tax Payable

 -   

Colombo

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  
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Other 

Reserves

Other 
Components

Reserve

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Super Gain Tax

- - -

- -

- -

Rights Issue - -

- - -

Share Based Payments - - -

Final Dividend Paid - - -

Interim Dividend Paid - - -

 As at 31 March 2016 

- - -

- -

- -

- - -

Share Based Payments - - -

Final Dividend Paid - - -

Interim Dividend Paid - - -

 As at 31 March 2017 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Group Company

Year ended 31 March 2017 2016 2017 2016

Notes Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

 -    -    -   
11

 -    -   
18  -    -   

-
 -    (4)

4  -   
 -    -   

Provision for Share Based Payment Expense
Finance Cost 5
Finance Income 5
Investment Income 4  -    -   
Share of Results of Associates 16  -    -   
Share of Results of Joint Ventures 15  -    -   

 -    -   

 -   
Finance Cost Paid
Finance Income Received
Income Tax Paid
Super Gain Tax  -    -   

Investment in Investment Property 11  -    -    -   
Investment in Intangible Assets

 -    -   

Dividend received from Joint Ventures  -   
 -    -   

Proceeds from Disposal of Investments  -    -    -   

Investment Income Received  -    -   

 -    -   
Proceeds from Rights Issue  -    -   

 -    -   
 -    -   

Dividends Paid to Non-Controlling Interest  -    -   

 -    -   
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1  GENERAL

1.2  Consolidated Financial Statements

 The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for 

and Associates whose Financial Statements have been 

advisory services to other companies in the Group and 

2.  GENERAL POLICIES

 The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have 
been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical 

and all values are rounded to the nearest rupee thousand 

 The Financial Statements which comprise the Statement 

Statements”) have been prepared in accordance with Sri 

 The Directors have made an assessment of the Company’s 

intend either to liquidate or to cease trading in the 

 The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the 
Financial Statements of the Parent and its Subsidiaries 

returns from its involvement with the investee and has the 

the investee)

involvement with the investee

its returns

relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it 

holders of the investee

 The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an 
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are 

obtains control over the Subsidiary and ceases when the 

Income and Expenses of a Subsidiary acquired or disposed 
of during the year are included in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements from the date the Group gains 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



153HEMAS HOLDINGS PLCANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

Controlling Interest and other components of equity while 

Subsidiary based on the contractual arrangement to 

been consolidated as a Subsidiary based on the contractual 

 The following Subsidiaries have been incorporated outside 

Name
Currency

Bangladesh Bangladesh 

Diethelm Travel The Republic of 

Singapore

Thailand Thai Baht 

or loss and net assets that is not held by the Group and 
are presented separately in the Consolidated Statement 

 The Financial Statements of the Subsidiaries are prepared 

 A Joint Venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby 

Control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of 

 The Group’s investments in its Associates and Joint 

amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes 
in the Group’s share of net assets of the Associate or Joint 

included in the carrying amount of the investment and is 

a change recognised directly in the equity of the Associate 

Venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the 
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Associate and a Joint Venture is shown on the face of the 

 The Financial Statements of Associates and Joint Ventures 

determines whether it is necessary to recognise an 
impairment loss on its investment in Associate or Joint 

measures and recognises any retained investment at its 

investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in 

 The following Associate has been incorporated outside Sri 

Name
Currency

measure the Non-Controlling Interests in the acquiree at 

previously held equity interest is re-measured at its 

amount recognised for Non- Controlling Interests over the 

the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the 

Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Consolidated Financial Statements arising from common 

Financial Statements of the previous years have been 

• Expected to be realised or intended to sold or 

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being 

A liability is current when:

cycle

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable 

before revenue is recognised:

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the 

 Revenue from rendering of services is recognised in the 

 Apartment revenue is recognised on the rooms occupied 
on a daily basis and food and beverages sales are 
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 The Group Consolidated Financial Statements are 

 Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the 

items is recognised in line with the gain or loss of the item 

and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to 
be recovered from or paid to the Commissioner General 

compute the amount are those that are enacted or 

where the Company operates and generates taxable 

directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the 

 The provision for income tax is based on the elements of 
income and expenditure as reported in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements and computed in accordance with the 

i) Where the deferred income tax liability arises from the 

be controlled and it is probable that the temporary 

 Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all 

forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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are only recognised to the extent that it is probable 

 The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is 

will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income 

at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year 

on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 

 Tax on dividend income from subsidiaries is recognised 

 Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of 

• When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or 

• When receivables and payables are stated with the 

authority is included as part of receivables or payables 

is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and 

Comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity in 

in which case the increase is recognised in the Statement 

 The Group has adopted a policy of revaluing land and 
building by professional valuers at least every three years 

eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset 
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of 
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are as follows:

Freehold Buildings

remaining lease period

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 

2.2.5  Leases

or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or 

commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased 

to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining 

 A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the 

intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost 

have been disposed of or when the investment property is 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic 

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset is recognised in the Statement of 

 Transfers are made to or from Investment Property 

such property in accordance with the policy stated under 

 Intangible Assets acquired separately are measured on 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated 

 The useful lives of Intangible Assets are assessed as either 

their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment 

are as follows:

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 

assets arising from development expenditure on an 
individual project is recognised only when the Group 

the intangible assets so that it will be available for use or 

assets and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure 

model is applied requiring the assets to be carried at 

development is completed and the asset is available for 

 Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net 

 Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present 

(d) Consumables and Spares - At Actual cost on First in 

i) Financial Assets
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trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or 

with changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of 

 Available-for-Sale Financial Investments include equity and 

which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in 

Investments are subsequently measured at fair value 

Comprehensive Income in the Available-for-Sale reserve 

 The Group evaluates its Available-for-Sale Financial 

and ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future 

expired

(b) The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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-  The Group has neither transferred nor retained 

 When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash 

over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the 
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum 

ii) Impairment of Financial Assets

Asset or the Group of Financial Assets that can be reliably 

observable data indicate that there is a measurable 

future expected credit losses that have not yet been 

discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the 

 The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through 
the use of an allowance account and the amount of the 

carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest 

prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been 

loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring 

recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by 

evidence that an investment or a Group of investments is 

or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment 
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impairment loss on that investment previously recognised 

Comprehensive Income and recognised in the Statement 

that investment previously recognised in the Statement 

accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the 

impairment loss is reversed through the Statement of 

entered into by the Group that are not designated as 

v) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

 The Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are traded 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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to the current fair value of another instrument that is 

forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency 

contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured 

 Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of 

 Amounts recognised as other comprehensive income are 

the amounts recognised as other comprehensive income 

recognised in equity is transferred to the Statement of 

gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive 

 Cash and short-term deposits in the Statement of Financial 

cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits 

measured at fair value or where fair values are disclosed 

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an 

 

 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using 

relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
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or disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements are 

to the fair value measurement as a whole:

measurement is directly or indirectly observable

measurement is unobservable

Consolidated Financial Statements on a recurring 

occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing 

are required to be remeasured or reassessed as per 

each asset and liability with relevant external sources 

further details as to how they are measured are provided 

 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present 

provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 

Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund

 Employees are eligible for Employees’ Provident Fund 

employees to Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ 

 The Group measures the present value of the promised 

plan with the advice of an actuary using the projected 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



165HEMAS HOLDINGS PLCANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its 

together with a corresponding increase in other 

the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in 

the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the 

require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 

recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements:

 Deferred Tax Assets are recognised for all unused tax 
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when the Consolidated Financial Statements were 

changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of 

at revalued amounts with changes in fair value being 

independent of those from other assets or Groups of 

are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 

that previously recognised impairment losses may no 

recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has 

asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss 

amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable 

and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value 

 Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the 

of the equity instruments at the date at which they are 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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these standards were not yet applied by the Group in 

any impacts on the current systems and processors will be 

The standard will also specify a comprehensive set of 

any impacts on the current systems and processors will 

evaluated in line with the 5 step model for recognising 

customers to provide goods and services in the ordinary 
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Customer

within the contract and determine which of those goods 

goods or services or when payment is in a form other 

for transferring the promised goods or services to the 

is considered to be transferred when the customer obtains 

 Recognising revenue upon a transfer of control is a 

asset refers to the ability to direct the use of and obtain 

Control also means the ability to prevent others from 

•  Ability — a customer must have the present right to 

•  Direct the use of — a customer’s ability to direct 
the use of an asset refers to the customer’s right 

asset to produce goods or services (including public 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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has an enforceable right to payment for performance 

the standard requires lessees to recognise leases on their 

recovery of some assets for more than their carrying 

opening retained earnings and other components of 

amendments are not expected to have any impact on the 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 REVENUE

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Sale of Goods  -    -   

Rendering of Services

4 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

 -   

Rental Income 

Commission Income  -    -   

Foreign Exchange Gain  -    -   

 -    -   

Dividend Income on Available for Sale Investments  15 

Sundry Income
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5 FINANCE COST AND INCOME

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

5.1 Finance Cost

 -    -   

 -    -    -   

 -    -   

 
 448  -   

5.2 Finance Income

 -    -   
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6 PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -    -   

Auditors' Fees and Expenses

 -    -   

Impairment of Trade Receivables  -   

Transport Cost  -    -   

 -    -   

7 INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years  -   

Tax on Dividends  -    -   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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7.1

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Associates  -    -   

Income not subject to Income Tax 

-  -   

Aggregate Disallowed Expenses

Aggregate Allowable Expenses

Aggregate Disallowable Income  -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 846  -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

Current Income Tax Charge
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7.2.1.

 Nature 

Enjoys a concessionary tax rate 15 years ending 

personal care items and other fast moving consumer 

7.2.2

 Nature 

Exempt 

Exempt 

Exempt  6 years ending 

7.2.3 

7.2.4 

7.2.5 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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7.2.6 

7.2.7 

7.3 

8 EARNINGS PER SHARE

shares outstanding during the year and the previous year are adjusted for events that have changed the number of ordinary shares 

Group

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

8.2

2017 2016

Group

Number of Shares at the Beginning of the Year

Issue of Rights  -   

 188  -   

Per Share 
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9 DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

9.1

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Final Dividends

Interim Dividends 

9.2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



177HEMAS HOLDINGS PLCANNUAL REPORT 2016/17
10

PR
O

PE
RT

Y,
 P

LA
N

T 
A

N
D

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T

10
.1

La
nd

on

La
nd

 

 M
ot

or
 

 2
01

7 
 2

01
6 

Rs
.'0

00
Rs

.'0
00

Rs
.'0

00
Rs

.'0
00

Rs
.'0

00
Rs

.'0
00

Rs
.'0

00
Rs

.'0
00

Rs
.'0

00

-
-

-
-

-
Im

pa
irm

en
t

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
D

isp
os

al
s

-
-

-
-

-
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

an
d 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

-
-

-
-

-
-

C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r

-
-

Re
in

st
at

em
en

t o
f F

ul
ly

 D
ep

re
ci

at
ed

 A
ss

et
s

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
44

6
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

D
isp

os
al

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

11
6

55
4

-
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

an
d 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

-
-

-
-

-
-

At
 th

e 
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 th

e 
Ye

ar



178 HEMAS HOLDINGS PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

10.1.1 

Rs'000

- Price per perch for land

- Price per square foot for building

- Price per perch for land

Buildings at Industrial Property at Welisara - Price per square foot for building

- Price per perch for land

- Price per square foot for building

- Rate of return

- Price per perch for land

Building at Galle - Rate of return

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Rs'000

Building at Thalawathugoda - Rate of return

- Price per perch for land

- Price per square foot for building

Valuer

Price Per Guest Room

Valuer

Price Per Guest Room

 154 Rooms 

Valuer

Price Per Guest Room

Valuer

- Price per perch for land

Building - Aluthmawatha - Price per square foot for building

Valuer

Price per perch for land

- Price per square foot for building
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Rs'000

Freehold Property at Welisara

-  Price per perch for land

Building - Price per square foot for building

-  Price per perch for land

Building -  Price per square foot for building

Building

- Rate of return

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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This method considers the selling price of a  similar property  

buyers  or sellers are too compensated  for since the price 

Price per perch for land

Price per square foot for 
building

(decreases)

(decreases)

 

income at an appropriate rate  of years purchase currently  

Years Purchase  (Present value 
of 1 unit per period)

Void Period

(decreases)

(decreases)

(decreases) 
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10.1.4   

10.1.5 

Group

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

At Cost

10.1.6 

10.1.7 

Cost

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

 -   

10.1.8 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Computer Motor 

 2017  2016 

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

 Balance at the Beginning of the Year 

 Disposals  -    -   

 Balance at the End of the Year 

 Balance at the Beginning of the Year 

 Charge for the Year 

 Disposals  -    -   

 Balance at the End of the Year 

At the End of the Year

At the Beginning of the Year

10.2.1  

10.2.2 
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

11.1

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

At the Beginning of the Year

 -   

Net Gain on Fair Value Adjustment

At the End of the Year

 -   

 -   

 (865)

 (865)

Rs'000

- Chartered Valuer

Freehold Property at Tangalle  

- Price per perch for land 

- Chartered Valuer

Freehold Property at Tangalle   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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11.2

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

At the Beginning of the Year

 -    -   

Net Gain on Fair Value Adjustment

Disposals  -   

At the End of the Year

 (181)  (448)

Rs'000

Incorporated Valuers

Freehold Property at Welisara 

-  Price per perch for land

Building -  Price per square foot for 
building

-  Price per perch for land

Building -  Price per square foot for 
building

 
Chartered Valuer

Freehold Property at Tangalle 

-  Price per perch for land
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12 LEASEHOLD RIGHTS/PREPAID LEASE RENTALS

Group

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

At the Beginning of the Year

At the End of the Year

12.1

Company Property

Rs.'000

15 Years

6A 11 Years

15A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

 2017  2016 

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Cost

Balance at the Beginning of the Year

 -    -   

Transfers  -    -    -   

 -    -   

Disposals  -    -   

Balance at the End of the Year

Balance at the Beginning of the Year

Transfers  -    -    -   

 -    -    -   

Disposals  -    -   

Balance at the End of the Year

 Impairment tests are carried out as follows:
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 13.2 

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Cost

Balance at the Beginning of the Year

Disposals  -   

Balance at the End of the Year

Balance at the Beginning of the Year

Disposals  -   

Balance at the End of the Year

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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14 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

Impairment of Investment in Exchange & Finance  

 -    -   
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31.03.2017 31.03.2016

PLC and 
Group 

Other 

PLC and 
Group 

Other 

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Non-Current Assets

Current Assets

Net assets

Revenue

Controlling Interests

Controlling Interest

Dividend paid to Non-Controlling Interests

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15 INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Cost

 -    -   

 -   

 
the Group

 (565) -

Share of Reserve transfer of Joint Venture -

Current Assets

Non Current Assets

Share of the Joint Venture Revenue

15.1

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

 -    -   
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16 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

 -    -   

 -    -   

 
the Group

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Current Assets

Non Current Assets

 -   

Net assets

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Revenue

Rs.'000

The details of the Gain on the Disposal are as follows:

Fair value of the shares Transferred to AFS Financial Assets       

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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17 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cost of equity

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

 -   

 -    -   
Refundable Deposits  -    -   

 -    -    -   
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17.1

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

 -    -    -   

Refundable Deposits  -    -   

17.2

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

 -    -   

 -    -    -   

17.1.1

Quoted

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Group

 1  1 

 18  18 

 1  1  1  1 

 85  85 

 -    -    -   

Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Group

 -    -    5 

 -    -    -   

 -    -   

Company

 -    -   

  -    -   

Group

Company

17.1.2

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Group

 -    -   

Company

 -    -   

 -    -   
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17.1.3

Company

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary  -   

Non Current  -   

Current

       Repayment - To be repaid on demand

18 INVENTORIES

Group

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Goods In Transit

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Trade Debtors 

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

Advances and Prepayments
 -   

Current < 30 > 120 days

Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

Group

2017

Company

2017

    

  Group  Company 

 Rs. '000

 -   

Charge for the Year  -    -    -   

Recovered During the Year  -    -   

 -    -    -   

 -   

Charge for the Year  -   

Recovered During the Year  -    -    -    -   

 -   

 -   
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19.1

Company

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  -    6 

Subsidiary  654  854 

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  54 

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  164  44 

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

 -   

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary  84 

Subsidiary  588 

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  11  11 

Joint Venture

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  -   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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19.2

Company

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  -    44 

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Joint Venture

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Joint Venture  1  1 

Subsidiary  -   

Joint Venture

Subsidiary

 -    51 

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  1 

Subsidiary
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20 STATED CAPITAL 

20.1

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Balance at the Beginning of the Year

Issue of Rights  -    -   

 -    -   

Balance at the End of the Year  

 

Granted
 

Grant  1 1 Year

1 Year

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

As at 31 March 

Group

As at 31 March 2017 2016

 WAEP*  WAEP* 

 -    -   

Granted during the Year

Excersised during the Year  -    -   

Cancelled during the Year  -    -    -   

Exercisable at the End of the Year  -    -   

 Company

As at 31 March 2017 2016

 WAEP*  WAEP* 

 -    -   

Granted during the Year

Excersised during the Year  -    -   

 -   

Exercisable at the End of the Year  -   -   

Grant 2 Grant 1

5

4 4
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21 RESERVES

21.1

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Balance at the Beginning of the Year

Share Based Payments

Balance at the End of the Year

 Group       

 Company 

Group

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Balance At the Beginning of the Year

Balance at the End of the Year

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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22 INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Balance at the Beginning of the Year

Repayments

 -    -   

 -    -   

Balance at the End of the Year

Non Current

Current



204 HEMAS HOLDINGS PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17
 

Co
m

pa
ny

Re
pa

ym
en

t 
20

17
20

16

Te
rm

s
Rs

.'0
00

Rs
.'0

00

 - 
 -   

 - 
 -   

D
eb

en
tu

re

 - 
 -   

Sh
or

t T
er

m
 lo

an
 - 

 -   

 - 
 -   

 -    -    -    -   

 - 
 -   

 -   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



205HEMAS HOLDINGS PLCANNUAL REPORT 2016/17
Co

m
pa

ny
Re

pa
ym

en
t 

20
17

20
16

Te
rm

s
Rs

.'0
00

Rs
.'0

00

ye
ar

s a
nd

 re
m

ain
de

r 

Ce
nt

ra
l F

in
an

ce
-

Fi
xe

d 
an

d 
re

m
ain

de
r 

- 
 -   

-
 6

8 

-
 -   

At
 a

 m
ar

gi
n 

ov
er

 1
 



206 HEMAS HOLDINGS PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17
Co

m
pa

ny
Re

pa
ym

en
t 

20
17

20
16

Te
rm

s
Rs

.'0
00

Rs
.'0

00

-
 -   

-
 -   

-
 -   

-
 -   

-
 -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Ca
pi

ta
l r

ep
ay

ab
le

 in
 th

re
e 

m
on

th
s

 -   

Ca
pi

ta
l r

ep
ay

ab
le

 in
 si

x 
m

on
th

s
 -   

Si
ng

ap
or

e

 -  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



207HEMAS HOLDINGS PLCANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

22.2

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

22.2.1

As at
01.04.2016

Repayments/ As at
31.03.2017

Non Current Current

 the Year

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

As at
01.04.2015

Repayments/ As at
31.03.2016

Non Current Current

 the Year

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

 Repayment - to be repaid on demand
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22.2.2

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Balance at the Beginning of the Year

Interest 

Balance at the End of the Year

Non Current

Current

23 OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Group

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

24 DEFERRED TAX 

Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Balance at the Beginning of the Year

 -    -    -   

Balance at the End of the Year

Company 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Balance as at Beginning of the Year

Balance at the End of the Year

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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24.1

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

 -    -   

 -    -   

25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LIABILITY

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Balance at the Beginning of the Year

 -   -  -   

Transfers  -    -   

Balance at the End of the Year

25.1

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

are as follows:

2017 2016

55 Years 55 Years

 1  1 

 11 
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Group Company

Post Post 

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

25.3

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Years From the Current Period

1st Following Year  548

 855

4th Following Year 

5th Following Year 

Beyond 5 years

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

 -    -   

 -    -   

Sundry Creditors including Accrued Expenses

26.1

Company

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Subsidiary

Subsidiary -

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary  151 

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  681 

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  -   

Subsidiary  -   
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27 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

27.1

27.2

 -   

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents for the Purpose of Cash Flow 
Statement

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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28 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Group

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Far Shipping  

Assets

Deferred Tax Assets  -   

Tax Recoverable  481 

 -   

Cash and Cash Equivalents

 -   

 -   

Tax Payable

 -   

Assets

 -   

 -   

Value of the Equity Interest Previously held in Acquire (Joint Arrangement)  -   

Net Cash Acquired with the Subsidiary
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29 FAIR VALUE 

2017 2016 2017 2016

Group Notes Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

      Refundable Deposit

 -    -   

Available-for-Sale Investments

Cash and Short Term Deposits

28.2 Disposals 

Rs.'000

Investment Transferred to Investment in Subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2017 2016 2017 2016

Company Notes Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Available for Sale Investments

Cash and Short Term Deposits

    Debentures

 -    -   
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directly or indirectly

31.03.2017

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Group

Available For Sale Financial Assets Equity Shares -

 -    -   

 -    -   

31.03.2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Available For Sale Financial Assets Equity Shares  -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

31.03.2017

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Company

Available For Sale Financial Assets Equity Shares -

- -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31.03.2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Available for Sale Financial Assets Equity Shares  -   

 -    -   

Group Company

Rs. '000

 -   
Disposals  -   

Group Company

Rs. '000

Disposals  -   

30 EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 
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31 COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES

31.1 Capital Commitments

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

 -   

 -   

 -   

 

following contracts and commitments have been entered into this regard:   
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31.3 Lease Commitments

2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Within one Year         

Leased Property Lessor

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

 

 

 Group Company

2017  -   

  -   

    

 
    

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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 2017 2016

  Group  Group 

 

 Rs.000 Rs.000 Rs.000 Rs.000
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Group

As at 31 March 2017  Less than 3 
Months 

 3 to 12 
Months 

 1 to 5 Years  > 5 Years 

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Borrowings 
 -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -   

As at 31 March 2016

Borrowings 
 -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -   

Company

As at 31 March 2017  Less than 3 
Months 

 3 to 12 
Months 

 1 to 5 Years  > 5 Years 

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Borrowings 
 -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -   

As at 31 March 2016

Borrowings 
 -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -   
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34 RECONCILIATION OF COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

 

For the year ended 31 March 2016

reported

Group Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

Revenue  -   

Cost of Sales

Share of Results of Joint Ventures 

Share of Results of Associates

Finance Cost

Finance Income  -   

Income Tax Expenses

 -   

35 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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 Guarantees        

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

 Rs.'000  Rs.'000  Rs.'000  Rs.'000  Rs.'000  Rs.'000 

Services  Rendered  -    -   

 -    -   

IT Charges

Rent  -    -   

 -   

Dividend Income  -    -   

 -   

 -    -   

Receipt of Services  -    -   

Shared Service Fee  -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -   

 -    -   

 

 

  Rs. 000     
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a

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000

 -    -    -   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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37 GROUP COMPANIES

2017 2016 2017 2016

Subsidiary

Subsidiary T
Products

Subsidiary Import and sale of Food Products

Subsidiary
Products

Subsidiary  -    -   Trading of Consumer Products

Subsidiary Research and Development Services

Subsidiary
Products

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Colombo 15

Subsidiary
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37

2017 2016 2017 2016

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Associates  -    -   

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  -    -   

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Joint Venture

Subsidiary GSA Emirates Airline

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  Travel Agent 

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Associate  -    -   

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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37

2017 2016 2017 2016

Subsidiary Shipping Agents

Subsidiary Shipping Agents

Subsidiary Shipping Agents

Joint Venture Freight Forwarders
Joint Venture Crew Boat Servicing

Subsidiary

Subsidiary General Carries & Warehousing

Subsidiary General Carries & Warehousing

Subsidiary Shipping Agents

Subsidiary Corporate Secretaries

Subsidiary Property Development

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary
Chemicals

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary - -

Subsidiary - - Transport Service

Subsidiary

Subsidiary  -    -   
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2017 2016 2015 2014

Rs'000  Restated 

Group Revenue

Stated Capital

Reserves

Retained Earnings

Non Controlling Interests

Assets

Investment Property

Intangible Assets

Investments                                                  

Deferred Tax Assets

Current Assets

TEN YEAR SUMMARY
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2008

 Restated 
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 (%) (%) (%)

16

11

68

41

 

2017 2016

    

Catagories of Shareholders

Individual

 

2017 2016

  

 

 

SHARE & DEBT INFORMATION
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2017
 

Parent Company  -   
Subsidiaries of Parent  -   
Directors’ Shareholding (a)

 -   
 -   

Controlling Interest (c)
 -   

Total Number of Shareholders

2017 % 2016 %

1

4
5
6

8 Nil -

11

14
15
16

18
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 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   

 

 
 

 

 

2017 2016

 -   
 -   
 -   

Interest Yield as at the date of last trade  -   
Yield to maturity of trade done  -   

Interest Cover Times
Times

SHARE & DEBT INFORMATION
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GLOSSARYGLOSSARY

CAPITAL EMPLOYED

CAPITAL RESERVES

CURRENT RATIO

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

DEBT

The sum of interest bearing long-term and short-term loans and 

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued 

DIVIDEND COVER

DIVIDEND PAYOUT RATIO

EARNINGS

EARNINGS PER SHARE

EBIT

EBITDA

EFFECTIVE RATE OF TAXATION

EQUITY

GEARING

INTEREST COVER

NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS PER SHARE

OPERATING PROFIT

PRICE EARNINGS RATIO
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RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED

Earnings Before Interest expense and Tax divided by average of 

REVENUE RESERVES

SEGMENT

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
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NOTICE OF MEETING

as Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year and to 

∫

∫

∫

∫

∫
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FORM OF PROXY
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FORM OF PROXY



Legal Form
A Limited Liability Company incorporated in Sri Lanka and 
listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange on 15th October 2003 

10th December 1948

30th May 2007

P Q 6

31st March 

Hemas House
No. 75, Braybrooke Place, 
Colombo 2.
Telephone: +94 11 4731731  
Website: www.hemas.com
 
Directors 
H. N. Esufally - (Chairman)
S. M. Enderby - (CEO)
A. N. Esufally 
I. A. H. Esufally
M. A. H. Esufally
R. Gopalakrishnan
D. S. Weerakkody
Dr. S. A. B. Ekanayake  
W. M. De F. Arsakularatne 
A. S. Amaratunga

A. S. Amaratunga – Chairman
D. S. Weerakkody
I. A. H. Esufally

Dr S. A. B. Ekanayake – Chairman 
A. S. Amaratunga
H. N. Esufally

R. Gopalakrishnan – Chairman
Dr S. A. B. Ekanayake
A. N. Esufally

CORPORATE  
INFORMATION

A. S. Amaratunga – Chairman
D. S. Weerakkody
I. A. H. Esufally

Secretaries
Hemas Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd
No. 75, Braybrooke Place,
Colombo 2
Telephone: +94 11 4731731
Facsimile: +94 11 4731777
 
Registrars
SSP Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd 
No. 101, Inner Flower Road,
Colombo 3 
Tel.: +94 11 2573894, +94 11 2576871
Fax: +94 11 2573609
Email: sspsec@sltnet.lk

Hemas Holdings PLC
Hemas House, No. 75, Braybrooke Place,
Colombo 2
Telephone: +94 11 4731731
Email: ir@hemas.com

Ernst & Young
Chartered Accountants
No. 201, De Saram Place,
Colombo 10.

D.L & F De Saram
No. 47, Alexandra Place,
Colombo 7
 
Bankers 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
Deutsche Bank AG
Hong Kong & Shanghai Banking Corp. Ltd

Standard Chartered Bank 

People’s Bank
Sampath Bank PLC 

Designed & produced by



WWW.HEMAS.COM

HEMAS HOLDINGS PLC

Hemas House,
75, Braybrooke Place,
Colombo 02,
Sri Lanka

E :  info@hemas.com
P :  (+9411) 4731731
F :  (+9411) 2332889
      (+9411) 4731777


